
MEETING AGENDA OF THE 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

OCTOBER 14,2019,7:00 P.M. 

1. Consideration: Resolution expressing gratitude to Alice McSpadden Williams for her service on 
the Planning Commission. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the September 23,20 19, regular meeting of the Mountain Brook City 
Council. 

3. Approval of the minutes of the October 1,20 19, special meeting of the Mountain Brook City 
Council. 

4. Announcement. Mayoral [relappoint of Rob Walker to the Planning Commission. 

5. Consideration: Resolution declaring certain personal property surplus and authorizing its sale at 
public Internet auction or disposal for such items not sold at auction. 

6. Consideration: Resolution ratifying the right-of-way acquisition in conjunction with the 
Dunbarton Road sidewalk construction project. 

7. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of service agreements for the following: 

a. All-In Mountain Brook 
b. Birmingham Zoo, Inc. 
c. Birmingham Botanical Gardens 
d. Jefferson/Blount/St. Clair Mental Health Authority 
e. Prescott House 

8. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a professional services agreement 
between the City and ESC for a geotechnical evaluation of Smyer Road. 

9. Consideration: Resolution setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 12,2019, to consider 
an ordinance adopting the 20 18 building codes and 20 17 electrical code. 

10. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is October 28,2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3. 

1 1. Announcement: There will be a public involvement meeting in the Council Chamber of City Hall 
located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 352 13 on Thursday, November 14,2019, from 
5-7 p.m. regarding the sidewalk project along Pine Ridge Road from Overton Road to Old 
Leeds Road 

12. Comments from residents. 

13. Adjourn. 



EXPRESSION O F  GRATITUDE TO ALICE MCSPADDEN WILLIAMS 
FOR HER DEDICATED SERVICE TO THE CITY ON THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, Alice McSpadden Williams has served with distinction on the 
Planning Commission of Mountain Brook from March of 2011 to September of 2019; 
and 

WHEREAS, Akce McSpadden Williams has served as Secretary to the Planning 
Commission from January 2015 to January 2019; then serving as Vice Chairman until 
September 2019; and 

WHEREAS, Alice McSpadden Williams brought invaluable insight to the 
Planning Commission's decisions regarding Lane Parlze, as well as multiple zoning 
ordinance revisions; and 

WHEREAS, Alice McSpadden Williams is a t r u e k n d  of consistently 
taking a special interest all matters of current and advance planning; and 

WHEREAS, Alice McSpadden Williams' vast institutional knowledge brought 
invaluable insight to decisions regarding all of Mountain Brook and its various villages; 
her thoughtful deliberation of all issues, steadfast dedication to her community, and 
strategic leadership being instrumental in establishing a legacy of sound city planning for 
years to come; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire oi the City of Mountain Brook to express its 
gratitude to Alice McSpadden Williams for her unselfish service and tireless efforts while 
serving on the Planning Commission, and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council and Mayor, on 
behalf of the residents of Mountain Broolr, do publicly thanlz Alice McSpadden Williams 
for her exemplary service. 

ADOPTED: The 14th day of October, 2019. 

Stewart H. Welch 111, Mayor 

APPROVED: The 14th day of October, 2019. 

Virginia C . Smith, President 



Minute Book 90 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

SEPTEMBER 23,2019 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6: 15 p.m. on the 23rd day of September, 20 19. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Teresa Callahan to discuss her ideas (Appendix 1) on proposed changes to the stop signs at the 
intersection of Dexter Avenue and Vine Street-Richard Caudle of Skipper Consultants (Appendix 2) 

It was the consensus of the elected officials that Council President Pro Tempore meet with School 
Board officials to discuss the trafic engineer's recommendations and report back to the City Council. 
Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard recommended that the City Council consider delaying 
implementation of any modifications until after the area construction (approximately 2 months) is 
completed to determine whether conditions still warrant the recommended changes. 

2. Feral Cat ordinance amendments-Whit Colvin (Ordinance No. 2058 was added to the formal meeting 
agenda) 

Police Chief Cook was instructed to communicate the no feeding of feral cats as provided in the 
proposed ordinance and to enforce existing laws with respect to the collections and disposition of 
the subject feral cats. 

3. Review of the other matters to be considered at the formal (7 p.m.) meeting. (Resolution No. 
20 19- 133 was added to the formal meeting agenda.) 

2. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further matters for discussion, the pre-meeting was adjourned at approximately 6 5 0  
p.m. 

September 23,2019 



1088 Minute Book 90 

3. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the work session of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A106) on September 23,2019, and that the meeting was duly 
called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and 
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said work session. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council October 14,20 1 9 

September 23,20 19 



Minute Book 90 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF T m  CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

SEPTEMBER 23,2019 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama and met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at approximately 7:00 p.m. on the 23rd day of September, 2019. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Council President Smith recognized Boy Scouts Sam Fowler of Troop 63 and Ward Holt of Troop 53 
(and others) in attendance for their Citizenship in the Community merit badge. 

2. JUDGE MARIA FORTUNE CANDIDATE FOR RE-ELECTION TO DISTRICT COURT 
PLACE 10 @RUG COURT) 

Judge Fortune addressed the governing body and attendees requesting their vote in the upcoming 
election. 

3. SUPERINTENDENT DICKIE BARLOW REGARDING THE SEPTEMBER 24,2019, 
SPECIAL ELECTION 

The Superintendent presented a 4-minute video explaining the need for the requested 10-mill ad 
valorem tax increase for the School System. 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

State Representative David Faulkner presented Mayor Welch with a check in the amount of $1 1,200 
to be used for the installation of two water fountains in City parks. 

State Representative David Faullcner then presented the family of Thomas C. Clark, Jr. with a 
resolution recognizing and memorializing Mr. Clark for his service to the community. 

Mayor Welch presented Kevin Alexander, DMD with a key to the City in recognition of the 30th 
anniversary of his dental practice in the City. 

Mayor Welch read aloud and presented the Magic Moments Day proclamation (No. 20 19- 140, 
Exhibit 6) to a representative of Magic Moments. 

September 23,2019 



1092 Minute Book 90 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the September 9,201 9, regular, joint meeting of the 
City Council and Mountain Brook Emergency Communications District 

2019-135 Gynecological Cancer Awareness Month proclamation Exhibit 1 

2019-136 Expression of gratitude to Sally Legg for her service on the Exhibit 2 
Village Design Review Committee 

2019-137 Expression of gratitude to James Ernest ("Bo") Grisham, 111 Exhibit 3 
for his service on the Village Design Review Committee 

2019-138 Authorize the execution of an agreement with ETC Institute Exhibit 4, 
with respect to a resident survey Appendix 1 

2019-139 Award the bid for portable target system for the City's target Exhibit 5, 
range (B-20190828-554) Appendix 2 

20 19-140 Magic Moments Day proclamation Exhibit 6 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, resolutions and proclamations were introduced by Council 
President Smith and a motion for their immediate adoption made by Council member Shelton. The minutes, 
resolutions and proclamations were then considered by the City Council. Council member Black seconded the 
motion to adopt the foregoing minutes, resolutions and proclamations. Then, upon the question being put and 
the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virgir~ia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes, resolutions (Nos. 2019-136 through 
20 19-1 39) and proclamations (Nos. 2019-1 35 and 201 9-140) are adopted by a vote of 5 - 4  

6. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 2058) AMENDING SEC. 6-3 OF THE CITY 
CODE WITH RESPECT TO STRAY, FERAL OR ABANDONED CATS AND FELINES 
(EXHIBIT 7) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited comments. 
There being no comments or questions, President Smith called for a motion. Council member Black made a 
motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and 
adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of said 
ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by 
Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the 
following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith 
William S. Pritchard, 111 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

September 23,201 9 



Minute Book 90 

Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion passed by a vote of 5-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Shelton moved for 
the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Womack. Thereupon, Council 
President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith 
William S. Pritchard, I11 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 2058) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 5-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 2057) AMENDING THE 
LANE PARKE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT MASTER (PUD) MASTER 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN WITH RESPECT TO DFUVlE THROUGHS (EXHIBIT 8, 
APPENDIX 3) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who requested that persons who 
wish to speak address their comments to the governing body, avoid repeating comments and keep comments 
focused on the proposed amendment. She then invited comments and questions from the audience. 

Me1 McElroy of 190 1 6th Avenue North representing Evson, Inc.: , . 
The owner has been working hard to replace the tenants lost due to extraneous circumstances 
The owner maintains a positive outlook for the development 
Crawford Square Real Estate has been added to the team to recruit new tenants 
The developer has identified two national tenants interested in opening locations within the 
development both of which are requiring drive-throughs which has prompted the requested 
modifications to the PUD master development plan 
The PUD modifications include 1) the addition of one drive-through in the "Treadwell's block" 
which shall be limited to only a bank, phamacy or dry cleaners and 2) specify the location of a 
new drive-through in the "Regions block" providing access to the new drive-through and 3) 
confirming the other location of a drive-through already permitted in the PUD 
[35:58] In exchange for these modifications, the owner is agreeing to grant the City the right to 
approve a traffic/queuing study for the proposed [coffee shop] and hture drive-through such 
approval not required in the current PUD 
If the Council approves the traffic/queuing study, the developer will be requesting approval of a 
coffee shop to be located in Building E 
A point of clarification is that the PUD does not allow for a fast food operation in the 
development 
Mr. Caudle studied an additional coffee shop located in Cahaba Heights and added the results 
thereof to his report and studied the traffic patterns along Jemison Lane and the potential impact 
of a drive-through 
Star Buck's (national) requires stacking capacity for 9 vehicles 
Regarding the loss of plantings along Building E to accommodate the proposed drive-through, a 
supplemental planting plan has been prepared to demonstrate confomance to the existing PUD 
green space requirements 
The tenants for the spaces cannot be expressed presently 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\20 19\20 190923 Minutes.doc September 23,2019 



1094 Minute Book 90 

Richard Caudle, P.E. of Skipper Consulting: 
The major change since the August 12 hearing, Skipper studied another Star Buck's located on 
Cahaba Heights Road 
The revised study is attached hereto (Appendix 3) 
The vehicle storage from Jemison Lane to the drive-through window is 195 feet or 9 vehicles of 
22 feet each 
It appears that the ques for the coffee shops studied may have more to do with the traffic volume 
of the adjacent street than the coffee shop itself 
Therefore, Caudle expects the proposed que to be more in line with the Montclair Road and 
Cahaba Heights stores than the Trussville store 
The Montclair site begins and ends in a parking lot 
The updated study suggests there will be no issues in the mid-day and afternoon peak times 
[49:42]. The 10th vehicle will block the crosswalk. The 1 lth vehicle will block one lane of 
traffic on Jemison Lane. The 12th vehicle will block both lanes on Jemison Lane. The updated 
study suggests that the que will exceed the storage capacity for 4 minutes during the morning 
peak times. Of those 4 minutes, the cross walk will be blocked for 1 minute, for 2 minutes at 
approximately 8:30 a.m. one lane of Jemison Lane will be blocked and for 1 minute both lanes of 
Jemison Lane will be blocked. 
Jemison Lane traffic was machine counted in 5-minute increments which showed the peak flow to 
be 15 vehicles or 3 vehicles per minute for 5 minutes. At this rate, during the peak times when 
the que is at its projected maximum, Jemison Lane should experience up to 3 vehicles in que 
behind the stopped vehicle in the drive-through. 
The original study did not indicate any issues with vehicles exiting a drive-through onto Rele 
Street 
The original Lane Parke traffic study would not be invalidated by the proposed modifications 
The third car in the Jemison Lane que described above could be blocked for up to one minute 
assuming the motorist is unable to pass using the three available lanes provided by Jemison Lane 

Sam Heide of 2800 Heathennoor Road of Crawford Square Real Estate Advisors: 
The principals of Crawford Square are all residents of the City 
People like the convenience of a drive-through 
A pharmacy drive-through provides more privacy than a store counter 
Accessing the current Star Bucks is unsafe for pedestrians due to having to cross a thoroughfare 
Patrons will still be able to go inside the Star Bucks as opposed to going through the drive- 
through 
Traffic is important to a retailer's success 
The success of this project is another step toward success for this community 
A big announcement for the development is scheduled for tomorrow 
Fast food is not in the plan 
Would it be the worst thing for Mountain Brook Village to have any of the following all with a 
drive-through: coffee shop, bank, dry cleaners, phannacy or organic juice bar-No 
The opposition is not all about the drive-through but perhaps an urge to say "I told you so" 
This project needs the community's support 
Asked for the community to root for the development, developer, marketing firm and the City 
The developer wants to bring businesses to the development that are complimentary to the Village 
The tenant at one of the three spaces for the building adjacent to the "Kinnucan's alley" cannot be 
formally announced yet but it is a retailer with a little of bottles. The others include the post 
office and talks are underway for an organic juice bar with a drive-through 

Victor Hanson of 2328 Chester Road: 
The objection is not to the drive-through per se but rather the Star Bucks drive-through which he. 
believes is more akin to a fast food drive-through 
Re: Mike OnTraffic graph (Appendix 4) illustrates the analogy of the drive-through requirements 
of various business types 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\20 19\20 190923 Minutadoc September 23,20 19 



Minute Book 90 1095 

His son recently reported that he was 12th in line on a Saturday morning at the Cahaba Heights 
Star Bucks on Cahaba Heights Road 
Encouraged the Council members to visit some area Star Bucks at peak times to see for 
themselves what these drive-through ques look like 
Star Bucks' states on their website they want 11 cars in their drive-through ques 
The City does not need to rescue this development by granting this modification 

Philip Grover of 27 14 Camage Place [1:20:28]: 
Previously asked [during the 201 3 hearings] what impact the development will have on 
Montevallo Road and never heard a response 
Supports what Victor Hanson said completely 
Hope the Council represents the residents as much or more than the developer as we live here and 
will be most impacted 

John Hornsby of 3400 Montevallo Road [1:22:36]: 
Mountain Brook is a city of relationships 
Is most concerned about the que and what delays motorists will encounter or whether they will be 
able back out of on-street parking spaces 
Thinks the que will be longer than the traffic consultant's report suggests 
Urged the Council to consider how an usually long que will be accommodated 

Richard Caudle: 
The most recent study did not include the entire PUD area 
The land uses and accesses of the PUD are not being modified so the original PUD study does not 
require an update 
Regarding motorists exiting onto Rele Street, it is not projected to carry a large amount of traffic. 
Additionally, the drive-through peaks will occur before stores along Rele Street open 
Jemison Lane was not studied due to its current state of incompletion. Yes, once completed 
Jemison Lane will experience greater traffic but the roadway will be improved to accommodate 
the increased traffic. 
Unable to respond to Mr. Hornsby's question about demographics and its impact on traffic 

Edmond Siebels of 287 1 Bamoral Road [I  :30: 181: 
Here in support of the proposal 
WorkswithBB&TBank 
Retail is under stress 
The success of this project is not guaranteed and it needs every opportunity to available to do so 
Urged the Council to vote in favor of this ordinance 

Ann Relfe of 3043 Canterbury Road [1:32:23]: 
There is always a lot traffic fiom her house to Montevallo Road 
Driving through Mountain Brook Village, she frequently encounters numerous delivery trucks in 
the middle of the road 
Views a blocked road will be a detriment to the community 
Mountain Brook does not want to be like Trussville or Cahaba Heights 
It is ridiculous that the City wants to accommodate someone wanting to make money and 
allowing a Star Bucks at this location to do so 

Abbie Molling of 2505 Mountain Brook Circle [1:34:43]: 
Is the que measured from the pick-up window or the ordering board to which Mr. Caudle 
responded that the que was measured fiom the pick-up window? Gaps can occur between the 
window and the order board 

September 23,2019 



1096 Minute Book 90 

Amy Tully of 2619 Watkins Road [1:39:29]: 
Inquired about the traffic flow direction which was pointed out by Council member Black on the 
illustration shown by the overhead projector 

Sirneon Johnson of 9 Woodhill Road [1:42: 111: 
Mr. McElroy described the various drive-throughs approved and questioned whether the Star 
Bucks drive-through is currently allowed 
Passed out copies of the August 12 Council minutes with portions highlighted about the 
discussion of the 2 or 3 drive-throughs 
Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard responded that Mr. McElroy was mistaken when he 
stated on August 12 that the PUD only included 2 drive-throughs 
Council President Smith stated that it was the recollection of the governing body that the PUD 
included 3 drive-throughs and that the inconsistency included in the PUD pointed out on August 
12 is a mistake. She went on to say that the irony of this discussion is that it her interpretation 
that the developer likely has the right to proceed with the installation of this drive-through without 
the approval of the City Council. 
Council member Womack stated that she was not present on August 12 and was confused when 
she read the minutes as she recalled the PUD including 3 drive-throughs 
John Evans had a plan for Lane Parke for over a decade. Just this year the plan has been changed 
to include these drive-throughs. 
The current PUD calls from numerous pocket parks and green space. Has not heard why the 
developer's original vision has changed or why the City is willing to give away the public green 
space and what is the City getting in return. 
Council President Smith: The greenery to be lost to accommodate the subject drive-through was 

never part of the "green space" for their numbers 
What is the City getting in return for giving away this green space? 
Council President Pro Tem Pritchard: The City is not giving away anything. The City is gaining 
a project that is moving forward and satisfies the needs of the community 

Dona Musgrave of 2620 Carriage Place [1:5 1 :26]: 
It was reported that the City would be giving up at 1 1 to 17 hardwoods and parking spaces 
A friend has been monitoring the Cahaba Heights Star Bucks and has reported that 3 p.m. appears 
to be that stores peak time. This individual has reported 13-1 5 cars in que and traffic backed-up 
everyone as all of the surrounding stores are open 
The statement that the Lane Parke store's peak flows will occur when surrounding businesses are 
closed is bogus 
Council President Smith: There is a landscape plan for the development. The City Council does 
not review the landscape plan. The Village Design Review Committee reviews the plan in 
relation to the Council-approved PUD master development plan. If the Council passes the drive- 
through tonight, the developer will be required to update its landscape plan. President Smith has 
seen a preliminary landscape plan that does show new plantings to replace those to be lost. Based 
on what President Smith has seen, the landscape is not a concern. 
City Planner Dana Hazen: Regarding parking spaces, there is a surplus of 18 spaces currently. It 
is projected that 11-14 spaces will be lost to accommodate the proposed drive-through. So, if 
approved, there will still be a parking space surplus. It is not the Council's responsibility to 
design the drive-through. And, if approved, the developer must still satisfy the parking 
requirements. 

Elizabeth Pointer of 3500 Country Club Boulevard: 
Supports the development moving forward 
Drive-throughs do not encourage shopping 
Thinks the lost parking spaces would better promote shopping 
Does not believe the queuing study to be accurate 
Visited the Cahaba Heights location and believes the study presented by the developer to be 
unscientific. Does not believe a one-day study to be relevant. During her 2-hour observation, 



Minute Book 90 1097 

disagrees with the 22-foot/vehicle measurement used to determine the number of vehicles that can 
be stored in the drive-through. 
Views this proposal, if approved, will have long-range negative effects on the development and 
surrounding village 

Louise Gayle of 2937 Southwood Road [2:03:08]: 
Often when people are in a drive-through they are distracted and do not pull-up timely 
When Canterbury Road was closed off, traffic was impeded. If this drive-through is approved, 
traffic exiting Rele Street onto Montevallo Road will be similarly impeded when turning left. 

Alleen Cater of 327 Easton Circle [2:05:23]: 
Visits the Cahaba Heights Star Bucks and the one in Mountain Brook Village often. When she 
visits the store with a drive-through it is an emand as compared to when she visits the Star Bucks 
in Mountain Brook Village when she shops nearby stores. 
Does the City want to make Lane Parke the best errand destination or shopping destination? 

Teny Oden of 6 Rockledge Road [2:07:55]: 
When this development was first considered, great effort was exerted to get "it right". The plan 
that was agreed to at the time was the plan sold to the public. Questions why the City would 
agree to a change now. 
Believes it is disingenuous of the developer to make such a request 
The community is counting on the City Council to keep its word 

Council President Smith [2: 1 1 :23] stated that she assumes no one has any new questions or concerns 
as she has not heard any for quite some time. There being none, the public hearing was closed. She 
then asked whether any of the elected officials had any questions or comments. 

Council member Womack: 
What is the distance between the proposed Star Bucks drive-through and Culver Road? Caudle: 
Based on the scale of the depiction, approximately 300 feet. 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard [2: 12:47]: 
Sincerely appreciates the comments and interest 
The comments have been considered and much study has been conducted since the August 12 
public hearing 
As pointed out by Terry Oden, considerable thought and effort was exerted before the initial 
approval of the PUD. One thing that was clearing understood by the governing body when the 
PUD was approved is that as the project evolved, it was going to require some tweaks. 
The world has changed in the last six years 
This drive-through proposal represents a significant change but one that is warranted under the 
circumstances 
It appears people may be concerned that the City Council has not given sufficient consideration to 
the publics' interests (not true), the person with the most to lose is John Evans and his family 
Questions have been raised about the validity of the traffic consultant's report. Skipper 
Consulting has been used by the City and others on numerous City projects. Mr. Pritchard could 
not envision how reconfiguring Green Valley Road at U. S. Highway 280 [re: Cahaba Village 
development] could work but the consultant's report proved to be correct in that study and many 
others. Views Skipper Consulting to be experts. Skipper has advised the Evans that this drive- 
through will work and if it does not, it will be the Evans' who suffer most. 
Made a motion to approve the requested modifications to the PUD [2:17:38] 

Council member Shelton: 
Could not disagree more 
Tends to agree with Teny Oden in that the City Council got it right back in 2013 and is not sure 
that the drive-through proposal is the magic bullet that is going to make the project successful 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\20 19\20 190923 Minutes-doc September 23,2019 



1098 Minute Book 90 

It is crystal clear that the City does not want a fast food operation in Lane Parke. Call it what you 
want but Star Bucks is a fast food operation. 
This proposal seems to contradict what we are trying to do all over the City 
We are considering a proposal that says we are okay blocking traffic 
The City Council modified Canterbury Road to achieve a reduction of commute time by seconds, 
yet here the City is considering a proposal that will block traffic for up to 4 minutes daily 
Intends to vote no and believes the City has more to lose than the Evans' family 

Council member Black [2:20:09]: 
The Planning Commission voted unanimously for this proposal given the same information and 
data sets 
This community expects excellence in all facets of this community (education, public safety, 
recreation, etc.) Excellence is not perfection. Daily we see 18-wheel delivery trucks parked in 
the middle of the roadways all over the villages including Star Bucks in Mountain Brook Village 
and we all simply deal with it. 
If a car does block traff~c on Jemison Lane and the motorist cannot maneuver around it, the driver 
will cope. 
Believes the City should allow the developer the ability to develop this property 
The developer has navigated a lengthy PUD review process to get where we are today for what 
Mr. Black considers to be a fairly minor modification 

Council President Smith [2:22:26]: 
Has wrestled with this proposal fi-om the start 
Initially, Ms. Smith could not have been more opposed 
Has read the documents and all of the e-mails (some twice) 
It was not until this morning that Ms. Smith had a change of heart 
Believes the facts do not support the beliefs that the drive-through will be the burden that she has 
been hearing fiom the people who have expressed their opinions and opposition 
Does not view this drive-through adversely impacting traffic along Rele Street and agrees with 
Council member Black regarding its impact on Jemison Lane 
Intends to vote in favor of the requested PUD amendment 

Council member Womack: 
Has also waivered in her opinion regarding this proposal 
Keeps coming back to the issue that if the proposal is denied, the developer can still put the coffee 
shop and drive-through at this location. Also, if the proposal is approved, the City gains more 
control over future tenants 
This proposal allows for a pharmacy 

Mayor Welch [2:24:3 81: 
Tends to lean toward the perspective of the businessman as he understands how hard it is to start, 
maintain and be successful in business 
Something really has to impress as being significantly detrimental to lean against a business 
Does not view this proposal as significantly adverse to the public's interests 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard: 
There are two matters for consideration: 1) an ordinance approving the amendment to the PUD 
[which does not require unanimous consent for immediate consideration as the matter has already 
been before the City Council] and 2) approval of a coffee shop at this location 
Made a motion for the approval of an ordinance amending the Lane Parke PUD master 
development plan as presented 

The motion was seconded by Council member Womack. Thereupon, Council President Smith called 
for vote by a show of hands with the following results: 

September 23,2019 



Minute Book 90 

Ayes : Virginia C. Smith 
William S. Pritchard, I11 
Philip E. Black 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: Lloyd C. Shelton 

The Council President Smith declared the ordinance (No. 2057) passed by a vote of 4-1. 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard then made a motion (No. 20 19-141, Exhibit 9, Appendix 5) 
to approve the drive through for a coffee shop for Block 10 as presented. The motion was seconded by 
Council President Smith. Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote by a show of hands with the 
following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith 
William S. Pritchard, 111 
Philip E. Black 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: Lloyd C. Shelton 

The Council President Smith declared that the said motion (No. 2019-141) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 4-1 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

8. ANNOUNCEMENT 

The next regular meeting of the City Council will be October 14,2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting at approximately 9:30 p.m. 

10. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A1 08) on September 23,201 9, and that the meeting was duly called and 
held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a 
quorum was present. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council October 14,20 19 

EXHIBIT 1 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2019-135 

GYNECOLOGIC CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

WHEREAS, gynecologic (GYN) cancers are among the leading cancer killers of women in the 
United States, and more than 107,000 women will be diagnosed, and more than 3 1,000 women will die from 
these diseases this year and the absence they leave in our hearts will be deeply felt forever; and 

J:Winutes & Agendas\Council\20 19\20 190923 Minutes.doc September 23,20 19 



Minute Book 90 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

OCTOBER 1,2019 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in special public session at City Hall of 
the City of Mountain Brook on Tuesday, the 1 st day of October 201 9, at 12:OO p.m. The meeting was then called 
to order by the Council President and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Absent: Philip E. Black 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Also present were City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 2059) CANVASSING THE RETURNS OF 
THE SPECIAL MUNICIPAIL TAX ELECTION HELD IN TFlE CITY ON SEPTEMBER 24, 
2019 (APPENDIX 1) 

Council President Smith stated that this was the date fixed by law for the canvass of the rehuns of the special 
municipal tax election held in the City on September 24, 2019, which had been called by Ordinance No. 2049, 
adopted on June 24, 2019. The Council, constituting a board of canvassers, thereupon proceeded to canvass the 
returns respecting the proposition submitted to the electors of the City at the said election, and upon completion of 
such canvass the following ordinance, together with the preambles thereto, was introduced in writing by Council 
President Smith: 

"AN ORDINANCE CANVASSING AND DECLARING THE 
RESULTS OF A SPECIAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD IN THE 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA, ON TUESDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 24,2019, REGARDING AN INCREASE IN THE RATE 
OF A PROPERTY TAX FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL PURPOSES 

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the City Council ("the Council") of the City of Mountain Brook ("the 
City") in the State of Alabama held on June 24,2019, Ordinance No. 2049 was duly adopted by the Council in which 
a special municipal election was called to be held in the City on September 24,2019 (being the fourth Tuesday in the 
month of September), for the purpose of submitting to the qualified electors of the City to determine their will with 
respect to the following proposition: 

Whether the City shall be authorized to levy and collect, in addition to all other taxes now 
or hereafter authorized, the special annual ad valorem tax at the per annum rate of 20.6 mills on 
each dollar of the assessed valuation of the taxable property in the City referred to in the notice of 
election set out in Section 3 of Ordinance No. 2049 adopted on June 24,2019. 

WHEREAS, notice of the said election was posted in four public places in the City (viz., the 
Mountain Brook City Hall, 56 Church Street; Cahaba River Walk, 3053 Overton Road; Overton Park, 3020 Overton 
Road; and Gilchrist, 2805 Cahaba Road, there being no newspaper published and having general circulation in the 
City, in the form provided in the said ordinance, said posting having been more than thuty days before the date of the 
said election, and having also been on or before the fourth Tuesday of the second month next preceding the month in 
which the said election was held; 

J:Mnutes & Amdas\CounciNO 19Q019 100 1 Minutes Election Canvass.doc October 1.2019 



Minute Book 90 

WHEREAS, the said election was held in the City on September 24, 2019, in all respects as 
provided in the said notice between the hours of 7:00 o'clock, a.m., and 700 o'clock, p.m., being the legal hours 
provided by law for holding the said election, and the ballot used in the said election was in all respects in the form 
therefor set out in the said ordinance, and the officials who conducted the said election have duly made and duly filed 
with the Council their respective reports, returns, and certificates; and 

WHEREAS, the Council is required by law to canvass the returns of the said election on the first 
Tuesday next after the said election, and declare the results thereof, and at a meeting of the Council held on October 1, 
2019, the Council, acting as a board of canvassers, has duly canvassed the said returns and ascertained the results of 
the said election with respect to the said proposition; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
acting as a hoard of canvassers for the purpose of canvassing the results of the said election, as follows: 

(1) the recitations contained in the foregoing preambles are hereby found and 
declared to be true and are hereby adopted as a part of this ordinance; 

(2) the said election was duly called, notice thereof was duly given, and the said 
election was duly held and the ballots used thereat were in all respects as provided by law; 

(3) at the said election on the said proposition, the canvass of the returns indicated the 
following:: 

Mountain 
Brookwood Brook Canterbur). 

St. Luke's Baptist Comm. United Cherokee 
Episcopal City Hall Church Church Bend Elem. Absentee Total 

01 02 03 04 
nc 

06 

For Increase in 
Rate of School 
Tax 

Provisional 

Against Increase 
in Rate of School 
Tax 

Provisional 

Registered voters 2,383 4,423 3,514 3,639 1,758 2,270 NIA 17,987 
Voter tum-out 17,9646 15.0696 17.10". 12.83?6 13.1400 16.56% NYA lS.J% 

Note: Overlunder votes not counted have been omitted from the vote counts above 

(4) at the said election on the said proposition a total of 2,792 votes were received 
and cast; of the said votes so received and cast 1,824 votes were received and cast for the increase. 
in the said special tax and 968 votes were received and cast against the increase in the said special 
tax; that the number of votes received and cast in the said election in favor of the increase in the said 
special tax were greater than the number of votes received and cast in the said election against the 



Minute Book 90 

increase in the said special tax; and that at the said election a majority of the qualified electors of the 
said City who voted thereat voted for of the increase in the said special tax. 

BE IT FURTHJ3R ORDAINED that this ordinance shall comprise the canvass and declaration by the 
Council of the results of the aforesaid election and shall be recorded in the minutes of the proceedings of the City." 

Councilmember Womack moved that the rules be suspended and unanimous consent be given for immediate 
consideration of and action on the said ordinance, which motion was seconded by Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard and, upon the same being put to vote, the following vote was recorded: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that the motion for unanimous consent for immediate 
consideration of and action on the said ordinance had been unanimously carried. Council President Pro Tempore 
Pritchard thereupon moved that the foregoing ordinance be adopted, which motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Shelton and, upon the same being put to vote, the following vote was recorded: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that motion for the adoption of said Ordinance (No. 2059) 
carried by a vote of 4-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

2. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (NO. 2019-142) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
THE AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER, IN THE FORM ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT A, 
WITH RESPECT TO THE CITY'S ANNUAL INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AUDIT (EXHIBIT 1, 
APPENDIX 2) 

The resolution and engagement letter were introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then 
invited comments. There being no comments or questions, President Smith called for a motion. Council member 
Shelton made a motion for adoption of the resolution. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. 
Thereupon, Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith 
William S. Pritchard, III 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that motion for the adoption of said resolution (No. 20 19-142) 
carried by a vote of 4-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

J:\Mmutes & ~das\Council\2019V0191001 Minutes E l d o n  Canvass.doc 



Minute Book 90 

The next regular meeting of the City Council will be October 14,2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 352 13. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no hrther business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned the 
meeting at approximately 12:05 p.m. 

5. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and correct 
transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at City Hall, City 
Hall Pre-Council Room (A1 06) on October 1,20 19, and that the meeting was duly called and held in all respects in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum was present. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council October 14,20 19 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-142 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City Council 
hereby authorizes either the Mayor or City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City Council, the audit 
engagement letter, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the City's annual independent financial 
audit. 

APPENDIX 2 

J:\Minm & hdasX:ounciiVO 19\20 19 100 1 Minutes Election Canvass.doc October 1.2019 



MAYORAL APPOINTMENT 20 19-143 

Mayor Welch announced his reappointment of Rob Walker to the Planning Commission 
to fill to serve without compensation through October 1,2025. 

Stewart H. Welch, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct synopsis of an announcement by the Mayor of the City of Mountain 
Brook during the regular meeting of the City Council conducted on October 14,2019, as same 
appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Mayoral Appointment to the Planning Commission 2019-143 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-144 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSAL 
OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which 
are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1 1-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: 

Section 1. It is hereby established and declared that the following property owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus 
property: 

Description 
Stihl FS13 1R 

Husqvama 372PTSS pole saw 
Stihl HLl 00 trimmer 

Stihl FS240R 
Stihl HLIOO trimmer 
Stihl HL100 trimmer 

Stihl HL94 
Stihl FS13 1R 

Husqvarna 580BTS 
Husqvarna 580BTS 

Stihl BR600 
Stihl BR600 
Stihl BR600 
Stihl TS5800 

Husqvarna 450 
20 1 1 Exrnark Lazer Z 

Section 2. That the City Manager, or his designated representative, is hereby authorized and 
directed to sell said property by way of public Internet auction or to dispose of such property not sold at 
auction. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October, 20 19. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October, 20 19. 

Mayor 

Surplus Property 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-145 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
City Council hereby ratifies the right-of-way purchase from Clay Spitler (Exhibit A) with respect 
to the ongoing Dunbarton Road sidewalk construction project. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October, 201 9. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October, 201 9. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on October 14,201 9, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Dunbarton Road Sidewalk Right-of-Way Acquisition 2019-145 



AGREeMENT 
FEE SIMPLE 

SYATE OF ALABAMA 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSOK 

THIS AGREEHENT made between t h e  C ~ t y  of Prrountain Brook i n  t h e  S t d L e  of 

A l a h m i ~ .  pdrLy o f  t h e  f i r s t  p a r t ,  a n d  Clay S ~ i t l c r  p a r t y  of t h e  s e c o n d  

p a r t .  

Fo r  and  l r t  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of  t h e  sum of one d o l l a r  (S14.100.00)  r n  hand  

p a i d  b, t h e  p a r t y  of t h e  f i r s r  p a r t  t o  t h e  parLy o f  t h e  s econd  p a r t ,  

r e c e i p t  o f  + h i c h  is  h e r e b y  acknowledged,  t h e  p a r t i e s  herein agree a s  

1. The p a r t y  o f  rhc f l r s t  p a r t  agrees t o  p u r c h a s e  i n  f e e  s i m p l e  

f rom t h e  p a r t y  o f  t h e  s e c o n d  p a r c  c e r t a i n  p r o p e r t y  known 

as Rigfit-of-Wa, T r a c t  No. & of  t h e  s u b j e c t  p r o j e c t ,  a s  identified f rom t h c  

rccotds of the C i t y  o f  Moun ta in  3 r ~ o k  f o r  t h e  p u r p o s e  o f  cons t ruc t : ng  a n d  

m a i n c a i n i n g  s p u b l i c  s i d e w a l k  i d e n t i t a c d  a s  P r o j e c t  No. TAPBH-TA18(9311 

a u  shown by t h e  r l g h t - o f - w a y  map o t  s s i d  p r o j e c t .  

2 .  The p a r t y  of t h e  s e c o n d  p a r t  a g r e e s  t o  sel l  arid con.ey t h e  

p r o p e r t y  lo cnc p a r t y  of t h e  f i r s r  p a r t  i n  fee simplo, Cree o f  a l l  

encumhrance t .  and w i l l  e x e c u t e  and deliver n w a r r a n t y  deed t o  t h e  

p a r t y  of t h e  f i r s t  part. conve ; i ng  t h e  p r o p e r t y  i n  fee s i m p l e  f r e e  of a l l  

encumbrances  t o  t h e  p a r t y  of t h e  f i r s t  p a r t  upon payment 

o f  t h e  sum of 5&4,100.00 .- d o l l a r s  co t h e  p a r t y  o f  t h e  s e c o n d  p a r t  by  

t h e  p a r t y  o f  t h e  flrsc p a r t  a t  t h e  t i m e  of deli c r y  o f  s u c h  deed. 

Thc p a r t y  o f  t h e  s e c c n d  p a r t  a q r c e s  t o  s o c i s f ,  a l l  l i e n s  f o r  ad 

v a l o r e m  t a x c s  o u t s t a n d i n g  d g a i n s c  t h e  above t r a c t  t h a t  bccomcs d u e  

a n d  p a y a b l e  O c t o b e r  1 n e x t ,  f o l l o w l n g  d a t e  ot e x c c u ~ f o n  ot t h c  

a q r e c m s n t  . 
Ttte part.; of t h e  second p a r t  underscandcr t h e  aba e men t ioned  sum 

ir .c?udes payment for t h e  f a l l o w i n g :  - -C.C3 -ac af land 

3 .  T h e  pe r r :  of  t h e  s e c o n d  par t .  a g r e e s  t o  g l e e  the p a r t y  

o f  t h e  f i r s t  p a r t  an3 i c s  c a n t r a c t o r a  immed ia t e  r igh: -of -ent ry  t o  

t h e  p r o p e r t y  b e i n g  a c q u i r e d :  Yes o r  No . 
4 .  E x c e p t i o n s  and a d d i t i o n a l  c o n d i t i o n s :  None 

I N  WITNESS WHEREOF t h e  p a r t i e s  h c r r i n  have  set c h e l r  hands a n d  

e l  I S  h e  3 d o Q p k ~ ~ f i  . 2 0 B .  
WITNESSES: g-u[7 



Date: 08/29/2019 
Record Locator: NWRSB 
Travelers: 

Spitler, Clay .Alexander 
Agent: vatravel@duluthtravel.com 

Agency Information 
2860 Peachtree Industrial Blvd 
Suite 1000 
Duluth GA, 30097 
866-779-6612 

1 uc, Sap 24 2019 

check-in HYAlT REGENCY Confirmation No. 32LW9LNX 
t*  Address: kt-: 

Phone: 222-222-2222 
Rate: USD 181.00 
Room Desc: NON SMOKING 
Info: C W R A O O  C0NVENTIC)N CENTER DENMR CO 

3:57 PM Birmingham (BHM) to Denver (DEN) - Confirmation No. MRZlG9 
United Airlines - Flight 5454 Takeoff: 3:57 PM 
OPERATED BY SKYWEST DBA U N m D  Birmingham, AL Landing: 6:05 PM 
EXPRESS Economy [ S ] Class I Food and Denver, CO 
PLEASE CHECK-IN WITH THE Beverage for Purchase I 3h 8m 
OPERATING CARRIER 

Travelers: 
Name: Spltler, Clay-Alexander Tlcket #: 016-7410428430 Seat: 186 

Wed, Scp 25 2019 

5:15 PM Denver (DEN) to Birmingham (BHM) - Confirmation No. MR21G9 
depart United Airlines -. Flight 5347 Takeoffi 5: 15 PM 

OPERATED BY SKYWEST DBA UNITED Denver, CO 
EXPRESS Economy [ S ] Class I Food and 
PLEASE CHECK-IN WITH THE Beverage for Purchase I 2h 45m 
OPERATING CARRIER 

T ravclers: 
Name: Spitlcr, Clay.Alexander Ticket #: 016-7410428430 Seat: 23C 

Landing: 9:UO PM 
Birmingham, AL 

Additional Information: 

.Check In Times Are 90 Mlnutes Prlor For Domestic Flights Or 120 Minutes For International Flights. . Check Carrier Web Site For Chan e/Cancel And Baggage Policies. 
For Erne ency Assistance Call 8616-779-6612. 
Check 1n?irnes Are 90 Minutes Prlor For Domestic. 
flights Or 120 Minutes For Internatknal Flights. 
Check Carder Web Site for Change/Cancel And Baggage Policies. . Org Code: VAVHAVl2 578 EDWARD HINES JR HOSPITAL 

.TA Number: 578794365 

A Messa e From Your Agent 
THIS MJSAGE CONFIRMS THAT YOUR RESERVATION HAS BEEN TICKETED. FOR CHANGES CANCELLATIONS OR Q U E ~ O N S  PLEASE CALL 
THE AGENCY PHONE NUMBER ON YOUR €ITINERARY. 



a Businass name. if different from above I 

Give form to the 
requester. DO not 
send to the IRS. 

~ ~ r m  Wn9 
(Rev. November 2~05) 
ocpurtmsnt of tho ~~cotuy 
IntmMI Ro*wuo smkc 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification 

gE 

f = g 
1 
U) 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 
1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am walttng for a number to be hued to me), and 
2. 1 am not subfed to bsckup wilhholding because: (a) l am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been n o t M  by the l n t d  

Revenue !b&w (IRS) that I am subject to badcup withhddlng as a result of a failure to reputt all W e s t  or dividends, or (c) the IRS has 
notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withhokflng, and 

P?. 

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on Line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this Is your social security number (SSN). However, for a resident 

3. 1 am a U.S. person Fduding a U.S. resident alien). 
Certification Instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are cumnlly subject to backup 
withholding because you have failed to report all Interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate tmnsacthns, #em 2 does not apply. 
For mortgage interest pald, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an Individual retfmment 

not required to sign the Certiflcstion, but you must 

Sign signature of 
Here us. pamm b on. c 4/23/19 
Purpose of Form ividual who is a cftizdn or r 

ership, corporatian, company, or association 
(TIN) to report, for example, income paid to you, real estate r organized in the United States or under the laws 
transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or of the United States, or 
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or 0 Any estate (other than a foreign estate) or trust. See 
contributions you made to an IRA. Regulations sections 301 -7701 -6(a) and 7(a) for additional 
U.S. person. Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person Information. 
(including a resident alien), to provide Your correct TIN to the Spedal rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a 
Person requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to: trade or business in the United States are generally required 

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are to pay a withholding tax on any foreign partners' share of 
waiting for a number to be issued), income from such business. Furlher, in cwtatn cases where a 

2. CertQ that you are not subject to backup withholding, or Form W-9 has not been received, a partnership is required to 
3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the 

U.S. exempt payee. 
withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that Is a 
partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the 

In 3 above, if applicable, you are also certifying that as a United States, pmvide Farm W-9 to the partnership to 
US- Person, Your allocable share of any partnership income establish your U.S. status and avoid withholding on yuur 
from a U.S. trade or business Is not subject to the share of partnership income. 
withholding tax on foreign partners0 share of effectively 
connected income. The person who gives Form W-9 to the partnership for 

purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding 
a requester gives you a Other than W-9 withholding on its allocable share of net income from the 

request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is 
substantially similar to this Form W-9. 

partnership conducting a trade or buslness in the United 
States is in the followina cases: 

Name (aa shown on your income tax return) 
Clav Alexander S~it ler 

-01 ~ a r t n d .  other. .................. 

Soolai sac* numbor 

2 1 5 1 64  4 1 14 1 ( 6 1 1 1 4 

- 
For federal tax purposes, you are considered a person if you The U.S. owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity. 

are: 

Exempt from bockup 
0- 

Cot. No. 10231 X Farm w-g (Aev. 1 1-2005) 

alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I fnstructiorts on page 3. For other entities, it Is 
your employer ldenttffcetion number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a TIN on page 3. or 

Address (nummr, s o a ~  and apt. 01 suite no.) 
3352 Hermitage Road 

sty, state. -P code 
Mountain Bmuk Alabama, 35223 

Note. If the account ie in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose 
number to enter. 

Requsster's name and addrese (optlwaO 

hyrloyar fdantifiootlm numbor 

1 4 1  I I I I I 

US: -nt rims) has (opt~wr) 

m ~ c a t i o n  

boone
Text Box
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

boone
Text Box
QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQ

boone
Text Box
RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR



REQUEST FOR AP CHECK 

DATE. Y- 29- I P 
To: ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT. City of Mountain Brook 
Please DreDare a check as follows . . 

Payable to - 

Anouni 

For What 
Purpose 

Vendor Nuvber 

Account Number: P.O. # 

Fund. General Otiner 

Check Disposition. 

(1) Return to 
u 

(2) Mail to. - 

13) Additional instructions: 

Requested By: 

Dept Head: 

Authorization: 
~ : \ ~ s 2 r s \ ~ a m ~ \ ~ p ~ ~ a t a ~ o c a 1 ~ i c r o ~ 0 n \ ' ~ i n d o w s \ ~ e m ~ o r a  Internet ~iles\~ontent.Ou~ook\DlZZL7RH\Check 

Reauest425.xls 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-148 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that either the 
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to 
enter into an agreement with All In Mountain Brook, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject 
to such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October, 20 19. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October, 2019. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk for the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on October 14,2019, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

All In Mountain Brook 



STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this the day of ,2019, by and 
between the City of Mountain Brook (hereinafter referred to as "City") and All In Mountain Brook 
(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"): 

WHEREAS, municipalities in the State of Alabama are authorized to promote the public 
health, sdety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment and the general welfare of the community; 

WHEREAS, All In Mountain Brook is an organization which has as one of its goals the 
promotion of public health, safety, morals, security, prosperity, contentment and the general 
welfare in the City of Mountain Brook-specifically, the enhancement and protection of the lives 
of Mountain Brook youth; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama desires to enter 
into a contract with the Contractor for the purpose of providing services and resources to residents 
of the City of Mountain Brook which are designed to combat issues and problems that place the 
lives and well-being of Mountain Brook youth at risk; 

WITNESSETH, 

1. That the City, for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter 
set out to be kept and performed by the Contractor, does hereby agree to pay the Contractor the 
sum of $10,000.00 (Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars) (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract 
Amount") for performing the services herein provided for the period beginning October 1,201 9, 
through September 30,2020. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

In consideration of the covenants and agreements made herein by the City, the Contractor 
agrees that the Contractor shall be totally responsible for, and shall have exclusive control over, 
the management and disbursement of the Contract Amount, and that the Contract Amount shall be 
used only for the purposes herein described: 

a. To underwrite All In Mountain Brook parent and student educational programming, 
thereby targeting families and youth in grades Kindergarten through twelfth grade, 
including but not limited to All In Mountain Brook speakers, activities, services, materials, 
and communications designed to combat issues and problems that place the lives and well- 
being of Mountain Brook youth at risk. 

b. Activities will be planned by appointed Parent Teacher Organization 
representatives in each school, along with administrators and school counselors. 



c. Contractor anticipates the following disbursement of the contract amount: 

(1) approximately $5,000 for parent and community programs 
(2) approximately $5,000 for student programs 

d. Contractor agrees to provide any and all personnel, supplies, and/or equipment 
necessary for the services herein to be provided. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide to the City at all reasonable times and places an 
accounting of the Contractor's expenditure of the Contract Amount. 

4. The Contractor shall not transfer or assign this contract or any of the rights and 
privileges granted herein without the prior written consent of the City. 

5. The Contractor agrees that upon violation of any of the covenants and agreements 
herein contained, on account of any act or omission of the Contractor, the City may, at its option, 
terminate and cancel this contract and to exercise any remedy, at its option, available to it whether 
in law or equity. 

6.  The Contractor agrees it will comply with Title 6 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
assuring that no person under its employ will be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits 
of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination on the grounds of race, sex, color, national origin 
or handicap. 

7. Notwithstanding any of the other provisions contained in this contract, the City 
shall maintain the right to terminate this contract upon proper notice, which shall be in writing and 
shall be provided to the Contractor at least 30 days prior to the intended date of cancellation. 

8. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any notice, consent or 
other communication required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and will be 
deemed received at the time it is personally delivered, on the day it is sent by facsimile 
transmission, on the second day after its deposit with any commercial air courier or express service, 
or, if mailed, three days after the notice is deposited in the United Sates mail addressed as follows: 

To City of Mountain Brook: City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
Post Ofice Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 352 13 

To Contractor: All In Mountain Brook 
C/O Mrs. Laura C. Hydinger 
10 1 Hoyt Lane 

Mountain Brook, Alabama 352 13 



9. Any time period stated in a notice will be computed from the time the notice is 
deemed received. Either party may change its mailing address or the individual to receive notice 
by notifying the other party as provided in this paragraph. 

10. No oral agreement or communication with any officer, agent, employee, or 
consultant of the City either before or after execution of this Agreement will affect or modify any 
of the terms or obligations contained in this Agreement. Any such oral agreement or 
communication will be considered as unofficial information and in no way binding upon City or 
Contractor. Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this the 7 day 
of b&b+/ ,2019. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 

A Municipal Corporation 

BY: 

Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 

WITNESSED: 

BY: 

ALL IN MOUNTAIN BROOK 

BY: d~ c* 
Its Authorized Agent 

Print name: Laura C. Hvdinger 

Title: Executive Director, All in Mountain Brook 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 



J I, &n;c4d-&t&mh</ , a notary public in and for said County in said 
State, hereby certify that Laura C. Hydinger whose name as Authorized Agent of All In Mountain 
Brook, a nonprofit corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, she, 
as such officer and with full authority executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said 
corporation. 

Given under my hand this the day of October, 201 9. 



October 8,2019 

To: Mountain Brook City Council Members 
RE: Request for Funding for Academic Year 2019-2020 

ALL IN Mountain Brook is grateful for the opportunity to  petition the City of Mountain Brook once again for financial 
support of our educational programs which help protect and enhance the lives of our youth and their families. Since 
our inception in 2014, ALL IN Mountain Brook has provided the Mountain Brook community with over 120 hours of 
free student, parent and community programs in three key areas: (1) drug and alcohol awareness, (2) mental health 
and wellness, and (3) safety and preventable accidents. 

ALL IN Mountain Brook is a registered Alabama non-profit corporation and a federal 5010(3) non-profit. Our board 
enjoys representation from a cross-section of the community, including: clinicians, school board members, 
administrators, teachers and coaches, city council members, local business leaders, worship community leaders, and 
parents and student representatives. Our organization is passionate and dedicated to providing our community with 
critical tools to  live safe, happy, healthy and productive lives. 

ALL IN Mountain Brook obtains some funding through family donations and the Taste of Mountain Brook, but funding 
from the City of Mountain Brook is integral to  our ability to provide such a broad scope and variety of relevant, 
meaningful educational programs for our community. 

The programs expenses for 2018-2019 are as follows: (see attached) 
Elementary, Junior High and High School Parenting Programs $5,850* 

Junior High and High School Student Programs - $5,405 

*A portion of this total includes the consulting fee ALL IN pays to Dr. Dale Wisely, PhD to conduct numerous 
parenting workshops throughout the year (see attached). 

In addition to the educational conferences and workshops offered in 2018-2019, ALL IN allocated resources to 
other areas to further our educational offerings and expand the reach within our community. ALL IN a Minute is a 
series of 1 minute educational videos, that we created, filmed and edited, featuring a variety of topics related our 
focus areas. The videos began monthly distribution to parents in August 2019. Finally, in 2018 we began building 
a new website to further our mission and provide additional community resources. The expenses from our ALL IN 
a Minute videos and new website are not reflected in this yeat's report even though work for these projects 
began in the 2018-2019 calendar year. (A complete schedule of programs for 2019-2020 is also attached.) 

Thank you again for your consideration. We are grateful for the continued support of the City of Mountain Brook. 

Respectfully submitted, 

" 
Laura Hydinger 
Executive Director 
ALL IN Mountain Brook 
allinmountainbrook@~mail.com 
205-305-1322 



&& Time 

September 11 6:30pm 

Location 

MB BOE 

September 20 9:00am/6:30pm MB BOE 

September 25 6:00-8.00pm Junior League of Birmingham 

s. - 

Student and Parent Programs 20 18 - 2019 

M c  

The Last Year Home and 
the First Year Away: A TaJk 
for Familes &High School Seniors 

Parenting the Teen Driver 

Calling 1111 Parents: Keeping our 
Daughter's Safe 

ADED &part series: 
The Disorders October 10 
The Treatments October 17 
MaMging Home and Family October 24 

MBHS Student Conference November 6 

Junior Eigh/Eigh School Parent Conference January 

ADHD &part series: 
TheDisorderS January 24 
The Treatments January 3 1 
Managing Home and Family Feb~ary 7 

Elementary Parenthg coderence (4**) February 12 
How to Raise Kids in a Tech World 
How to Protect Kids in a Tech World 
How to Develop and Maintain Strong Friendships 

MB BOE 
ME BOE 
MB BOE 

MBHS 

MBHS 

MB BOE 
MB BOE 
MB BOE 



March 4th 

. 

M B  BOE 

2 - Date Time Location 

Parenting the Teen Ddver February 2 1 9:00d6:30pm MB BOE 

Elementup Parenting Coderence (K*) February 26 5:30pm CBS 
How to Raise Kids in a Tech World 
How to Protect Kids in a Tech World 
Addressing Big Issues with Small Kids- 
Having Difficult Conversations 

Developing a Positive Discipline Plan: ~ 
(Elementary Parents) I 

I 

Developing a Positive Discipline Plan: 
(Parents of Teens) 

HLL IN, Vestavia & Homewcmd Event 
Harmless vs. Hazardous 
Rx Medication Abuse and Prevention 
Vaping: What Parents & Professionals Need to Know 
Addiction: Warning Signs and Resources 

Myths and Truths: A Guide to 
YaruTeeMger 

I I 

I 
I 

For More Informattion and Resorures I 

or 
To Register fiu a Confezence: 

I 
www.allinmountainbr0ok.org I 

March Ith 

March 12 

March 19 

MB BOE 

MB BOE 



Conferences 
K-3- Jan 14 (MBE) 

4-6- Jan 22 (MBE) 
7-8- Oct. 2 (MBJH) 

9-12- Sept 24 (TBD) 

HS Student (Developed by MBHS) 

JH Student (Developed by MBJH) 

AlMB 
Programming 

2019 - 2020 
Small Group 

ADHD- Dale Wisely 

Teen Driving-Dale Wisely 

Discipline (Elementary-2 Part)-Dale Wisely 

Discipline (Teenage-2 Part)-Dale Wisely 

Myths and Truths about Teenagers-Dale Wisely 

Last Year at Home, First Year Away-Dale Wisely 

Grandparent Group-Tech Topic-Suzan Brandt 

Community Wide Speaker- Substances 

Monthly Programming Plan 

April 

Driving 

Teen 
Driving 

---- March 

Mental 
Health 

Myths and 
Truths 

Discipline- 
Teenage (2) 

May 

Drug 
Disposal 

Feb. 
Parent 

K-3 
4-6 

Anxiety 

Dec. 

Device 
Monitoring 

Nov. ----- 
Student 

Conference 

Relationships 

Grandparent 

Jan. 

Sleep 

ADHD 

Oct. 

Alcohol 

Substances 

Discipline- 
Elementary 

(2) 

Aug. Sept. 

Conferences 

All In a 
Minute 
Videos 

Small 
Groups 

Bullying 

Registrations 

Last Year at 
Home 

Parent 
7-8 
9-12 

Va ping 

Open 
Houses 

Teen 
Driving 



AlMB Conference Planning 

High School Conference-Grades 9-12 

6:00-6:15- Embracing the Beauty of People- Dr. Barlow 

6:15-7:W Relationship Revolution- Relationships in the Digital Playground- Dale Wisely 

7:00-7:45- What's My Value? The Highs and Lows of Teenage Life-Cindy Wlley 

Junior High Conference- Grades 7-8 

6:00-6:15- Embracing the Beauty of People- Dr. Barlow 

6:15-7:00- Relationship Revolution- Relationships in the Digital Playground- Dale Wisely 

7:00-7:45- What's My Value? The Highs and Lows of Teenage Life-Cindy Wiley 

Pre-Teen Conference- Grades 4-6 

6:00-6:15- Embracing the Beauty of People- Dr. Barlow 

6:15-7:00- The Pressure of the Playground: Helping your Child Navigate the Digital Playground- Suzan Brandt 

7:00-7:45- Parenting 101: From Those Who Have Been There (Parent Panel + Student) 

Elementarv Conference- Grades K-3 

6:00-6:15- Embracing the Beauty of People- Dr. Barlow 

6:15-7:00- What's Your Motivation? Developing Your Parenting Principles- Dale Wisely 

7300-7345- Raising a Resilient Child-Alexis Sapp 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-149 

WHEREAS, the Birmingham Zoo ("'Zoo") is a regional educational and entertainment attraction 
located adjacent to the municipal limits of the City of Mountain Brook ("City"); and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo serves the Mountain Brook community and its citizens through educational 
and informational programs, offering educational and family entertainment options, and through its 
cooperation in the City's recent flood control efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the City, as a community partner, supports the mission and purpose of the Zoo, and 
has provided financial commitments to the Zoo as a result of the Zoo's commitments and service to the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook wishes to extend those financial 
commitments to the Zoo for an additional year, all as set forth in the attached Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook 
that the City's financial commitments to the Zoo shall be and hereby is extended for an additional year as 
set forth in the attached Agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the commitments between the parties expressed in the 
Agreement are deemed to be fair and adequate and serve a public purpose, and the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October 2019. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October 201 9. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on October 14,2019, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

Birmingham Zoo, Inc. Agreement for Services 



THIS AGREEMENT made this 14th day of October, 2 0 1 9 by and between the CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("Mountain Brook"), a municipal corporation of the State of 
Alabama, and the BIRMINGHAM ZOO, INC. ("Zoo"), an Alabama non-profit corporation. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students who attend 
Mountain Brook City Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo has developed certain programs, exhibits, and learning opportunities 
which, in the City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to said students; and 

WHEREAS, such programs, exhibits, and learning laboratories are not available at Mountain 
Brook City Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo has agreed to work cooperatively with and assist the City with future 
public works projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to pay the Zoo the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), 
in consideration of the Zoo providing the City the services referred to in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the City and the Zoo hereby agree as follows: 

1. The City shall pay to the Zoo Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) within sixty (60) days 
of execution of the agreement and receipt of the Zoo's annual report for the fiscal year ended September 
30,2019. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the funds as provided herein, the Zoo shall provide 
at least the following services to the City ("Services';): 

a. The Zoo will provide guides and educational enrichment for all pre-scheduled field 
trips to the Zoo from Mountain Brook City Schools for one (1) year from the date of 
execution of this Agreement. In addition, all participants in pre-scheduled field trips 
from Mountain Brook City Schools to the Zoo will be eligible to participate in the 
Zoo's group discount admission program. 

The Zoo will provide to Mountain Brook City Schools a series of educational 
programming and classes targeting elementary, middle, and high school students free 
of charge for one (1) year from the date of execution of this Agreement. 

The Zoo will use its best efforts to work cooperatively with the City and provide 
assistance and support to the City with the City's future public works projects that are 
located near the Zoo. 

3. The Zoo shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise necessary to 
fulfill its obligations to Mountain Brook City Schools under the terms of this Agreement. The Zoo is 
an independent contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control 
of the City nor shall any of the agents or employees, or other persons, firms, or corporations conducting 

Page 1 of 2 



business for or on behalf of the Zoo be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 

4. The Zoo shall indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and elected officials and 
hold them harmless from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, losses 
and expenses of any kind, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs, which may be 
asserted against, or suffered by the City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection 
with: (a) the performance or attempted performance by the Zoo or its agents or employees of the Zoo's 
obligations under this Agreement; and (b) any claim that the payments described herein were 
improperly paid by the City to the Zoo. 

5.  The Zoo agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the types of 
operation conducted by the Zoo and which are customary to similar operations. All financial records 
and other documents pertaining to this Agreement shall be maintained by the Zoo for a period of three 
(3) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The City shall have full access to, and 
the right to examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times during 
the term of this Agreement and during said three-year period. The Zoo agrees that upon request from 
the City, the Zoo will submit to and cooperate with periodic audits by the Alabama Department of 
Public Examiners or other audit procedures requested by the City. 

6 .  If the Zoo fails to comply with the provisions ofthis Agreement, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Agreement and, unless corrected by the Zoo within thirty (3 0) days 
following receipt of written notice for the City of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this 
Agreement and the City shall have a right to terminate this Agreement by giving The Zoo twelve (12) 
days prior written notice of such termination, and the City shall not be obligated to make any additional 
payments to the Zoo. Such termination of this Agreement by the City shall not relieve the Zoo of any 
of its obligations or liabilities to the City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of this Agreement, 
whether such obligations or liabilities occur or accrue before or after the termination of this 
Agreement. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Zoo, Inc. has caused this Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized Chief Executive Officer and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this Agreement to 
be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the 14th day of October, 2019. 

Stewart Welch I11 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 

Attest: 

Chris Pfefferkorn 
Chief Executive Officer, Birmingham Zoo, Inc. 

Attest: 

Page 2 of 2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-150 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Birmingham Botanical Society subject to such 
minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October 2019. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October 2019. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on October 8,20 18 as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Birmingham Botanical Society Contract 2019-150 



Contract for Services 
Fiscal Year 2020 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City of Mt. Brook, 
an Alabama Municipal corporation ("City"), and the Birmingham Botanical Society, a nonprofit 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("'Association"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students in its school 
system including: and 

Whereas, Contractor has developed certain programs, exhibits, and learning laboratories 
which, in the City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to such students; and 

Whereas, such programs, exhibits and learning laboratories are not available in the Mt. 
Brook school system; and 

Whereas, City has agreed to pay contractor the sum of twenty thousand dollars 
($20,000.00) in consideration of Contractor providing City services referred to in the Contract. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants 
and agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. City shall pay to Contractor the sum of ten thousand dollars ($1 0,000.00), upon a) 
execution of this contract for services for one year from date of execution and b) 
receipt of the Association's annual report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2019. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds as provided herein, Contractor 
shall provide at least the following services to City ("Services"): 

a. Contractor will continue to provide city students with a variety of free science 
curriculum-based field trips. The trained docents provide activities which are 
based on Alabama Course of Study: Science 

b. Contractor agrees to inform the teachers about the Contractor's field trips and 
invite their participation 

c. Field trips are for students in grades Kindergarten (K) through High School, 
inclusive 

d. The following field trips are available during the following months: 



e. Field Trips are available Monday through Friday, inclusive, from 9:30-11:30am. 
No field trips are offered on federal and state holidays 

Native American Area 

Dr. George Washington Carver 
Garden Gates Workshop 
(Plant Propagation) 
Tropical Rain Forest 
Alabama Woodlands 

f. Schools shall select the students that will attend the contractors' field trips. The 
Contractor shall not be responsible for providing transportation 

September-November 
March-May 
September-November 
January-February 

March-May 
September-November 

g. Schools shall contact the contractor at least ten (10) business days in advance of a 
proposed field trip to schedule a date that shall be reasonably convenient for 
schools and the contractor 

h. The Contractor requires the presence of one (1) adult per ten (1 0) children for the 
duration of each field trip. 

Interde endence p )  

i. The city and the contractor shall each monitor the number of students that attend 
the contractor's field trips and shall agree to reconcile the number at the end of the 
contract period 

Secret Life of Trees 

Plants: Inside Out 

Pollinator Observation 

j. The Contractor will engage with sophomore-through-senior city high school 
students 

September-November 
March-May 
September-November 
March-May 

March-May 

k. City Chamber of Commerce shall seek additional opportunities with the contractor 

3. Contractor shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise necessary to 
fulfill its obligations under this Contract. Contractor is an independent contractor and 
none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of City nor shall 
any of the agents, or employees or other persons, firms, or corporations conducting 
business for or on behalf of Contractor be deemed to be agents, or employees of City. 



4. Contractor shall indemnify City and its agents, employees and elected officials harmless, 
fiom and against all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, losses and 
expenses of any kind, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs which 
may be asserted against, or suffered by, City or its agents and employees arising out of, 
or in connection with: (a) the performance, or attempted performance, by Contractor or 
its agents or employees of Contractor's obligations under this contract; and (b) any claim 
that the Contract Funds were improperly paid by City to Contractor. 

5. Contractor agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the types of 
operations conducted by Contractor and which are customary to similar operations. All 
financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained by 
Contractor for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of the 
Contract. City shall have full access to, and the right to examine, any of such financial 
records and other documents at all reasonable times during the term of this Contract and 
during said three-year period. Contractor agrees that upon request from City, Contractor 
will submit to, and cooperate with, periodic audits by Alabama Department of Public 
Examiners or other audit procedures requested by the city. 

6. If Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of the Contract, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected by Contractor within thirty 
(30) days following receipt of written notice fiom City of such default, shall be deemed a 
breach of this Contract and City shall have a right to terminate this Contract by giving 
Contractor ten (10) days prior written notice of such termination, and City shall not be 
obligated to make any additional payments to Contractor. Such termination of this 
Contract by City shall not relieve Contractor of any of its obligations or liabilities to City 
under the provisions of paragraph 4 of this Contract, whether such obligations or 
liabilities occur or accrue before or after the termination of this Contract. 

7. The Association and the representative of the Association who executes this Contract, by 
the execution of the Contract, certify that: 

a. no part of the Contract Funds paid by City pursuant to this Contract shall be paid 
to, or used in any way for personal benefit of, any elected official, employee or 
representative of any government or any family member of any such official, 
employee or representative, including federal, state, county and municipal 
governments and any agency of any such government; 

b. neither the Association nor any of its officers, agents, representatives or 
employees has in any way colluded, conspired or connived with any elected 



official, employee, or representative of City, or any other elected official or public 
employee, in any manner whatsoever to secure or obtain the Contract; and 

c. except as expressly set out in this scope of services of this Contract, no promise or 
commitment of any nature whatsoever of anything of value whatsoever has been 
made to any such elected official, employee or representative of City as an 
inducement or consideration for this Contract. 

Any violation of the certification shall constitute a breach and default of this Contract 
which shall be cause for termination. Upon such termination, the Association shall immediately 
refund to City all amounts paid by City pursuant to this Contract. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Botanical Society has caused this Contract to be 
executed by it duly authorized Executive Director on Oct. 1,2019, and City of Mt. Brook has 
caused this Contract to be executed by its duly authorized representative, on Oct. 8,2019, but 
this Contract shall be effective as of October 1,2019. 

Birmingham Botanical Society, Inc. 

City of Mountain Brook 

By: 
By: It's Mayor 



--=% 

TC- F R I E N D S  
t r 

~ e y  , of Birmingham 
Botanical Gardens 

Annual Report for City of Mountain Brook 
As of October 1,2019 

Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens is proud to serve and partner with the great City of Mountain Brook 
and its residents to provide unique educational, volunteer, and ameliorative opportunities. 

Education 
As one of our longest education supporters and partners, the City of Mountain Brook made it possible for the 
Friends to provide Mountain Brook students over 398 hours of programing through our award winning science 
education field trips, Discovery Field Trips. These trips were provided free during the 2018/2019 school year to 
199 students and their teachers. In addition to the schools and teachers who choose to return year-after-year to 
enrich their in-class learning, we were able to indude 40 Girl Scouts and Cub Scouts who learned about trees in 
Spring of this year. Working with Highlands Day School, we created a special field trip for 40 2" graders and 
four adults with a Jefferson County Beekeeper, Dr. Leland Hull, to discuss the importance of pollinators in our 
pollinator garden. They were so pleased with the experience that we have already arranged for them to return in 
October for another Pollination Observation field trip. 

In the coming year we have made arrangements for Mountain Brook Early Learning Center to return in 
October to learn about trees with kindergarteners and preschoolers. Brookwood Forest 2nd Grade is planning 
on a visit in April 2020 for Pollinator Observation to connect to their science unit studying pollinators and 
interdependence for nearly 100 students. 

Enrichment 
From internships to volunteerism, the Friends is attempting to spread knowledge and passion for plants to our 
community. This past year, we have had Mountain Brook citizens volunteer over 1,490 hours through hands-on 
work in the Gardens. Their contributions range from helping with Fundraising events (Spring Plant Sale, 
Antiques at the Gardens), as facilitators of our Summer Camps for kids, and as part of our many plant groups. 
In particular, the Bog Garden Work Group, a group comprised endrely of Mountain Brook residents, and 
guided by the leadership of Mountain Brook resident, Dr. Larry Stephens, have revivified our Bog Garden into 
a place of vibrant, year-round interest. 

Currently, during this 2019/2020 school year, we are fortunate to have an intern from Mountain Brook High 
School, Ann Inskeep, assisting in various capacities with our Garden Assessment Project Leader, Molly Hendry. 
Her work has had her engage in such diverse capacities as researching native plants for the Kaul Wildflower 
Garden, helping plant new seasonal perennials in the Southern Living Garden, in addition to many behind-the- 
scenes tasks. While this internship gives Ann credit toward her studies, she is also developing an interest in 
horticulture and the importance of the natural world and our interactions with it. 

Functional Beautification 
The exceptional aesthetic value Birmingham Botanical Gardens adds to our surroundings, that same beauty that 
inspired the high-end boutique hotel, Grand Bohemian, to adapt a botanical theme, is being expanded with an 
eye toward hnctionality. Throughout this past year, our Director of Operations, Jane Underwood, has been 
working to improve rain water collection. With the draught we experienced at the end of this summer, these 
projects could not have been better timed. This includes collecting rain water runoff from the surrounding 
neighborhoods. In the coming year, visitors and residents can expect to see an improved Cahaba Road/Lane 
Park point where we are adding a new landmark sign as well as including perennial plants to add year-round 
interest. 

With the help of the City of Mountain Brook and its civic-minded citizens, Friends of Birmingham Botanical 
Gardens is making a difference in our community, helping the Gardens and the city grow forward while 
preservingits rich heritage. We are deeply appreciative of the City's support. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-151 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that either the 
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to 
enter into an agreement with the Jefferson - Blount - St. Clair Mental Health Authority, in the form 
as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the 
City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October 20 19. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October 2019. 

- 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on October 14,2019, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

Jefferson/Blount/St. Clair County Mental Health Authority Agreement for Services 2019-151 



JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAlR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
940 Montclair Road Suite 200 Birrning ham, Alabama 3521 3 www.jbsrnha.com 

Telephone: (205) 5954555 Voice Mail: (205) 380-6460 Fax: (205) 592-3539 TDD: 1-8W545-I833 ext. 516 

Executive Committee of the Board 
Margie Sanford 

President 

Donna Burgess 
Secretaty 

Lois Scott 
First Vice-President 

J. Marvin Thornton 
Treasurer 

Lamar Kelly 
Second Vice-president 

Jansen Voss 
Asst. Secretary / Treasurer 

Cathy lrvin Marianne Sharbel Cindy Smith 
Member-At-Large Member-At-Large Member-At-Large 

September 18,201 9 

Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3 

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

find the FY2020 Contract for Local Funds. As always, we hope that 
provide funding for our mental health services for your area as we 

our relationship with you. Please review, sign and send back 
a copy for your records. If you have any questions or 

at 205-443-221 1. 

contracts dministrator P 

Board of Directors composed of three appointees each from: 
Bessemer - Birmingham - Blount County - Fairfield - Gardendale - Homewood - Hueytown 

Jefferson County - Leeds - Mountain Brook - Oneonta - Pell City - St. Clair County - Tarrant - Vestavia Hills 



STATE OF ALABAMA) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON) 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this the day ol' 201 9. b and 

brt~vren the City of Mountain Brook (I~ereinatier referred to as "City") and the Jefferson - 

Blount - St. Clair Mental llealth Authority (hereinalier referred to as "Contractor"): 

WHEREAS, municipalities in the State of Alabama are nutliorized to promote the public 

health. safeo. morals. security. prosperity. contentment and the general u l f a r e  of the 

co~nmuni ty : 

WHEREAS, Jefferson - Blount - St. Clair Mmtal Health Authority. is an organimtion 

11 hich has as one of its goals the pro~notio~l of public health. safet). morals. security. prosperity. 

cclntentment and the general welfare in the City ol'Mountain Brook: 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Citj of h4ountain Brook. Alabama desires to enter 

into a contract with the Contractor for the purpose of providing mental health services to 

residents of the (.'in! of' Mountain Brook: 

1. That the City. for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinalier set 



out to be kept and performed by the Contractor. does hereby agree to pay the Contractor the sum 

of TWO THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED and NO11 00 (S2.100."") Dollars. for perfomling the 

services herein pro\*ided for the period beginning October 1.201 9 through September 30.2020. 

2 .  SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

In consideration at'tlie colrenants and agreements made herein by the City. the Contractor 

agrees that is shall he totally responsible for. and shall have esclusi\.e control over the 

management and dishursen~e~lt for all such monies received from the City. and that all monies 

rccci\,ed under this contract shall be used only for the purposes herein described: 

a. Pro~ide relief for rssidc~~ts who are in need of crisis stabilization for uninsured 

mentally ill  persons: 

b. Provide medication and outpatient therapy for mentall> i l l  persons: 

c. Pro~siJr housing and treatment for mentally i l l  persons: 

d. Provide in - home therap! for at - risk youths \rho art. in danger of being rerno\*ed 

fiorn their homes: 

e. Provide case manaycnlent to access housing and other supports to avoid unnecessan 

admissions to state hospitals: 

f. Provide social ivork assistance to bmilics: and 

g. Colltractor agrees to provide any all personnel. supplies. equipment nrcessar) for the 

sen-ices herein to be pro\,ided. 

3. The Co~ltmctor agrees to provide to the City at all reasonable tin~zs and places 

accounting for the expenditure oC fi~nds granted herein. 

4. The Contractor shall not transfer or assign this contract or the license or any of the rights 

2 



.and privileges grwted herein without the. priorwritten consent of the City. 

5.  The Contractor agrees that upon violation of any covenants. and agreements herein 

contained, on account af any act or omission of the Contractor, the City may, at its option, 

terminate and caqcel this contract and to exercise any remedy, at its aption, available to it 

whether in law, or equity. 

6. The Contractor agrees that it will comply with Title 6 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

assuring that no person under its ernp1.0~ will be excluded tiom participation in, be denied 

benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination on the grounds of race, sex, color, 

national origin or handicap. 

7. Notwithstanding any of the other provisions contained in this contract, the City shall 

maintain the right to terminate this contract upon proper notice, which shall be .in writing and 

shall'be provided to the Contractor at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of 

cancellation. 

8. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any notice, consent or other 

communication required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing .arid will be 

deemed teceived at .the time i t  is personally delivered, on the day it is sent be facsimile 

transmission, on the second day after. its deposit with any commercial air courier or express 

service, or, if mailed, 3 days after the notice is deposited in the United States mail addressed as 

foIlows: 



To City of Mountain Brook: City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 1 30009 
Mountain Broak, AL 352 1 3 

To Contractor: Jefferson - B.lount -.St. Clair Health Authority 
Yvonne Gallinan, Associate Director 
940 Moritclair Road, Suite 200 
Birmingham, AL 3521 3 

Any time period stated in a notice will be computed from the time the notice is deemed 

received. Either party may chvge its mailing address or the person to receive notice by 

ndtifying the other party as party has provided in this paragraph. 

No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, employee, or consultant of 

the City eitherbefore or after execution of this Agreement, will affect or modify any of the terms 

or obligations contained in this Agreement. Any such-verbal agreement or conversation will be 

considered as unofficial information and in no way binding upon City or Contractor. Any 

amendment to this Ageement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our han& and.s,&.on this the 

day of ,2018. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN. BROOK, 
A Municipal Corporati- 

BY: 
Stewart Welch 

Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 

BY: 

JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAIR 
MENTAL 

BY: 
Its Authori.zed 
Pent name: 

Title: ~ j ~ ~ ~ f i ~ &  bif@&f 



STATE UF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

4 a h ~ c  a notary .public band for said County in. said State, 

hereby c&fy that whose name as Authorized Agent of the 

JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAIR MENTAL HEALTH.AUTHORITY, a nonprofit 

corporation, is signed to the foregoing hs@ment and who is known to me, acknowledged before . 
me on 'this day hpt, being inf~rmed~of the contents of the instrument, he/she, as such officer and 

with 1 1 1  authority executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said corporation. 

Given under my hand this the 18 day of ~wbn&aA 2019 

Commission Expires W COWISSIQN WIRES: ' 
Jmcmy72.20m 9 ' 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-152 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Prescott House subject to such minor changes 
as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October 2019. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October 2019. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on October 14,201 9, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Prescott House contract 



TMaeoree 
CHILI, AOVOCACY CEh7F61 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

Prescott House hereby proposes to provide services to the City of Mountain Brook Police 
Department in the form of forensic interviews, counseling, team reviews, court preparation and 
court accompaniment in all reported cases alleging child abuse, child sexual abuse, and children 
who have witnessed violent crime. 

Prescott House proposes to provide said services, and additional related services as the case 
may require, for FY2020, October 1,2019 through September 30,2020. 

The City of Mountain Brook agrees to compensate Prescott House for said services in the 
amount of Five-thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) to be paid during the period stated above. 

On behalf of Prescott House 

On behalf of the City of Mountain Brook 

Dated 

1730 1 Avctluc South Bi~miugl~.un, r U .  35205 W (205) 930-3622 n~r~r~.prcscod~ousc.org 



and privileges granted herein without the prior written consent of the City. 

- - 
3. fl1e Contractor agrees that upon violation of any covenants and agreements herein 

contained. on account of any act or omission of the Contractor. the City may. at its option. 

terminate and cancel this contract and to csercise any remedy. at its option. a~vailable to it 

whether in la\\. or equity. 

6. The Contractor agrees that it \\.ill complv with Title 6 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

assuring that no per so^^ under its ernplo~ will be excluded liom participation in. be drilied 

henefits of. or otherwise be subjected to discrimination on the grounds of race. sex. color. 

national origin or handicap. 

7. Not\vitlistanding any of the other provisions contained in this contract. the City shall 

maintain the right to terminate this contract upon proper notice. which shall be in writing and 

shall be provided to the Contractor at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of 

cancellation. 

8. Escept as otherwise esprcssl! pro\.ided in this Agreement. any notice. c o ~ ~ s c t ~ t  or other 

conununication required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and \\.ill be 

deemed received at the time i t  is personally delivered. on the day it is sent be facsimile 

transmission. on the second day after its deposit with any commercial air courier or express 

service. or. if mailed. 3 days after the notice is deposited in ihe United States inail addressed as 

t'ollo\vs: 



To City of Mountain Brook: City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. 130s 130009 
Mountain Brooli. Al. 352 13 

To Contractor: JefSerson - Bloullt - St. Clair 1 lealth Authority 
Yvonne Gallman. Associate Director 
940 Montclair Road. Suite 200 
Birmingham. AT. -352 13 

Any time period stated in a notice will he computed horn the time the notice is dseilled 

received. Either party tnay change its mailing address or the pcrson to receive notice by 

nati 4ing the other party as party has provided ill this paragraph. 

No verbal agreetncnt or conversation with any ofticer. agent. emp1o)ee. or co~lsultant of 

the City either before or aftcr execution ol'this Agreement. \itill affect or n~odilj. any of the tenns 

or obligations contained in this Agreement. Any such verbal agreemen1 or conversation will be 

considered as unofficial information and in no way binding upon ('it) or Contractor. Any 

an~endment to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both parties. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals on this the 

day of ,2018. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
A Municipal Corporation 

BY: 
Stewart Welch 

Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 

WITNESSED: 

BY: 

JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAlR 
M E N T A L P J G  

BY: 
Its Authorized 
Print name: 

Title: ~ ~ ~ C & ~ V &  bif@&f 



STATE OF ALABAMA 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 

 am^- a notary public in and for said County in said State, 

hereby certify t h l i t & t d  ( whose name as Authorized Agent of the 
0 

SEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAlR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY, a nonprofit 

corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, acknowledged before 

me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he/she, as such officer and 

with full authority executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said corporation. 

Given under my hand this the 18 day of SybmbA ,201 9 

My Commission Expires MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: ' 

January 12,2020 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-146 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
City Council hereby authorizes the acceptance of a professional services proposal between the 
City and ECS Southeast, LLP, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, for geotechnical 
subsurface consulting and evaluation services of Smyer Road. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of a contract and such other 
documents that may be determined necessary with respect to said services all subject to review 
and approval by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October, 20 19. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October, 20 19. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on October 14,2019, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

ECS Southeast Geotechnical Evaluation Services of Smyer Road 2019-146 



Mr. Ronnie Vaughn 
City of Mountain Brook 
Department of Public Works 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3 

September 27,2019 

Reference: Proposal for Subsurface Evaluation Services 
Smyer Road 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35216 

ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 

Dear Mr. Vaughn: 

Based on the information provided, ECS Southeast, LLP (ECS) is pleased to submit this proposal 
to perform a geotechnical engineering evaluation for the above referenced site. This proposal 
consists of project information, scope of services, cost, and schedule. 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Our knowledge of the proposed site conditions is based on our conversations with you and a 
preliminary site visit on September 25, 2019. 

We understand there is pavement rutting and tearing along a section of the asphalt paved 
roadway in the portion of Smyer Road located within the city limits of Mountain Brook. From our 
prior knowledge of the site and from our conversations with you, we understand that the area 
has been remediated in the past with patching and repaving along with a small section of the 
road stabilized with concrete foundation retaining structure installed about 10 years ago. It's 
important to note that the prior repaired section is not within the area of concern for the current 
evaluation. 

At this time, you have requested that we evaluate the subsurface conditions in the area and 
provide remediation and repair approaches, as applicable. 

We have assumed the following for budgeting purposes: 

Excess soil spoils will be disposed of onsite out of the right of way of road traffic. 
Work may be performed during normal business hours (Monday - Friday 7am to 6pm). - 
The borings are accessible with truck-mounted equipment. . Repair of landscaping and grass due to drill rig access is outside the scope of services. 
A land disturbance or tree removal permit will not be required. 

133 W. Oxmoor Road, Suite 205, Birmingham, AL 35209 T: 205.588 5099 ecs11mited.com 
ECS Capitol Services, PLLC * ECS Florida, LLC ECS Mid-Atlantic, LLC * ECS Midwest, UC ECS Southeast, LLP ECS Southwest, LLP 



Smyer Road Subsurface Evaluation 
ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 
Page 2 

Gcv I '^"NICAL SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Based on the provided information, we have developed a scope of services that includes drilling 
a series of borings along the northern lane of the roadway where there is observed failure, as 
well as a few borings for comparison purposes in the opposite (southern) lane. Therefore, we 
have included a scope of 12 to 15 borings spaced within the area of interest. Please refer to the 
included Boring Location Diagram for a reference of typical spacing and locations; the actual 
locations of the borings will be directed in the field by our engineer. 

We are anticipating encountering shallow rock in our borings. Therefore, each boring will be 
extended to auger refusal andlor depth of bedrock (anticipated to be about 5 to 10 feet deep. 
Please note that this depth may vary based on the conditions encountered. 

A total of up to 150 feet of drilling has been budgeted for this project. 

Soil samples will be transported to our laboratory in Birmingham, Alabama, for further 
identification and testing. Laboratory testing for the scope of services will include the following 
(subject to slight modifications, depending on the results of exploration): 

Natural Moisture Content of soil 
Atterberg Limits 
Material Finer than No. 200 Sieve 

30 each 
3 each 
3 each 

Upon completion of excavation operations, the soil borings will be backfilled with the cuttings 
and the boring holes patched with cold patch asphalt. Every effort will be made to minimize 
damage to the existing roadway surface near the work areas and along ingresslegress 
pathways. 

We will contact the Alabama One-Call System to locate underground utilities. However, no 
additional utility locating has been included in this proposal. Should you have drawings 
indicating any on-site features including utilities, we request a copy for our review. Alabama 
One-Call does not locate private utilities. We assume that we will be provided the below-grade 
utility plans, and that a private utility locator is not required for this site. Due to the ~otential for 
subsurface utility interactions, we recommend the attached allowance of $1.600 for utility 
location within the area of evaluation. 

Our exploration results will be incorporated into a geotechnical report that will include a soil test 
boring summary and an overview of the findings. The engineering report will include an 
Executive Summary as well as the following items: 

a. Observations from our site reconnaissance including current site conditions, surface 
drainage features, and surface topographic conditions. 

b. Description of the field exploration and laboratory tests performed. 

c. Final logs of the soil borings and records of the field exploration and laboratory tests in 



Smyer Road Subsurface Evaluation 
ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 
Page 3 

accordance with the standard practice of geotechnical engineers. This includes a boring 
location diagram and vicinity map. 

d. Recommendations for repair for potential soil conditions encountered, if necessary. 

e. Recommendations for additional testing andlor consultation that might be required to 
complete the geotechnical assessment and related engineering for this project 
(supplemental reports and evaluations can be performed as requested; supplemental 
reports and evaluations will be considered additional scope and will be billed in accordance 
with our standard fee schedule unless otherwise negotiated). 

FEES 

We will perform the proposed scope of services outlined herein for a lump sum fee of $4,900.00. 
Please note that this fee does not include the previously referenced fee of $1,600 for private utility 
clearance. 

It is also important to note that we understand additional consulting time will be required for 
meetings with City officials. As such, we have included an allowance of $1,600 for consulting and 
meetings. This will provide approximately 10 hours of consulting time by a Principal Engineer 
beyond that required for execution of the subsurface evaluation. 

We have assumed that the site is not environmentally impacted and will not require specialized 
services for impacted conditions. 

If additional work is required due to unexpected conditions encountered during our field study, or 
because of a request for additional services, they will be invoiced on a unit rate basis. Prior to 
modifying or expanding the agreed upon scope of work, your authorization for changes in the 
scope of services, cost, and schedule for the project will be required. 

SCHEDULE 

We anticipate that soil test boring operations will require about one (1) day to complete, and that 
laboratory testing will require about seven (7) days after the completion of the test borings. 
Therefore, for time budget purposes, the entire scope should take about four (4) weeks from 
initial authorization through final report submission. Verbal comments on findings can be 
provided within three days of completion of the borings, if requested. 

CLOSING 

It orner items are required because of unexpected field conditions or because of a request for 
additional services, they would be invoiced in accordance with our current Fee Schedule. Before 
modifying or expanding the extent of our exploration program, you would be informed of our 
intentions for both your review and authorization. 

Attached to this letter, and an integral part of our proposal, are our "Terms and Conditions of 
Service". These conditions represent the current recommendations of the GeoProfessional 



Smyer Road Subsurface Evaluation 
ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 
Page 4 

Business Association, the Consulting Engineers' Council, and the Geo-Institute of the American 
Society of Civil Engineers. 

Our insurance carrier requires that we receive written authorization prior to initiation of work, 
and a signed contract prior to the release of any work product. This letter is the agreement for 
our services. Your acceptance of this proposal may be indicated by signing and returning the 
enclosed copy to us. We are pleased to have this opportunity to offer our services and look 
forward to working with you on the project. 

Respectfully, 

ECS Southeast, LLP 

David G. Marsh, P.E. 
Principal Engineer I Branch Manager 

Danny Trawick, E.I. 
Project Manager 



Smyer Road Subsurface Evaluation 
ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 
Page 5 

PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE FORM 
ECS SOUTHEAST, LLP 

(Please Print or Type) 

Project Name: Smyer Road Subsurface Evaluation 
Location: Mountain Brook, Alabama 35216 

Subsurface Evaluation: $ 4,900.00 
Private Utility Clearance: $ 1,600.00 -YES -NO 
Additional Consulting: $ 1,600.00 -YES -NO 

Please complete and return this Proposal Acceptance Form to ECS as shown at the bottom of 
this form. By signing and returning this form, you are providing us with authorization to proceed, 
providing us permission to enter the site, and making this proposal the agreement between us. 
Your signature also indicates that you have read this document and the general conditions of 
service in its entirety and agree to pay for these services. 

CLIENT AND BILLING INFORMATION 

Name of Client: 
Contact 
Person: 

Telephone No. 

E-mail: 

Responsible fo r  Payment Approval o f  Invoice (if different) 

Contact Name: 

Company Name: 

Address 

Address 

City. State, Zip 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No: 

E-mail Address: 

The reports are normally e-mailed directly to client. If you require copies to others, please 
provide their names, e-mail addresses and fax numbers below. 

Name e-mail Address Phone Number Fax Number 

Special Instructions: 

Client Signature: x Date: 



@ Approximate boring locations - 

Proposed Boring Location Diagram ENGINEER 
DGM 

SMYER ROAD EVALUATION SCALE 
1 " = 1 0 0 '  

PROJECT NO 
30:1356 

SHEET 
SMYER ROAD, MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 1 OF 1 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK DATE 
9/26/2019 



30-1356-P Smyer Road Suhrurface Evaluation (hereinafter t h e  "Proporal") 

C l len t :C l t~  of M o u n t a i n  Brook. Alabama 

ECS SOUTHEAST, LLP 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

The profeltonal se~lces (fheSemce%')fo be provided by ECS SOUlHE/\ST,LLP ['ECS'] punvant 
tothe ~ropocolrhri l  beprovidadln auordancewithfhere~arm~and condnlanr ofservtre 
1'7crmr"l, including any addenda armey beincorporaad or referenced in wrllmg~hall form the 
Aa,aamant between ECS and Client. 

1.0 INOEPENOEMCONSULTANT STAN5 ECS lnall lCrvL 2% an mdIPPPdddf p ~ ~ i e ~ ~ o n a l  
c~n%ultanlto CUEM lo# S e m r ~ o n  the Pro.ecl *dent red above. an@ ma hawwntrol  ovar.md 
v n ~ o n s t ~  arr lor, the man land  mrthoa~for  om. 0 nathe SIMWS i d c n u ~ d  m the ~ m p o w  
indudingthe retention of subwnuactom and Subconrulunu 

2.0 YOSEOFSERVIN-it ibundemtttdthat the hee,eeimbumbIe expensesand ,!me 
schedule defined I n t h e P m w l  arebaredon inlormlrian pmvided by NENTandIorCUWPS 
contractorsand mnlul fmk CUEMacknoWiedges that if thlr information ir not currant, k 
inmm~lotcar  inac~uraf2n~ondltionr are dbmemc that couldnot be rearon=blyforereen, or It 
CLIENTDlde~.add~flonalrcmcer. t h c w o p ~ o f n r v t e s  will change, ~v~nwh l l~ theserv l re la re  In 
progress 

3 0 SANOARDOFURE 

3 1 In IuMllingIts obllgationsand n~ponr lb l l l t i~ r~nument~d ln tha  Prapoul, ECSrhall be 
expected to complywlth and I~pertormance evaluated In llght ofthastandard of rare expected 
o fp ro f~ f ion r l l i n  theindvNypsdofmlngrlmllarrervirsson prolcrtr d l l ke r i zemd 
romplaxlW a t  that t lmeh the redon Ithe "Sundad ofUre"J. Nohlngrontamed inthe 
Pmpo~I,Ihe a g r ~ ~ - ~ p o n ~ ~ p e o l S e r v l ~ ,  t h ~ e T e m s m d  Condltlonr of Selvlra or m y  E U  
m p o h ~ p l d o ~ ,  planorotherhrum~ntpraplnd by EUrhr l l  m n N t v t c a * R m W O r g u l n n h  
of m y  na1YR Ml-"I.. 
3.1 CUENTundentands andagreesthat ECSwbll rely onthe laNicarnedhom datagathered 
duringperfmanre ofScmirerarwdiasthDIc hrupmvided by UtcCUENT. CLIENT 
adnowled~e~ that such&ta m i l m o n  is limnted to rocnfic arearthat arc samoled, bored. tested. 
observed andlor evaluated. Comqurntly. UIENTwalVCImy mdr l ldaimr baad upon 
ermnmur hru prrmded byfhealEM. hru ~ubwqvsnuy learned ornnardinn~anMionl in 
areasnor ipecinrnllynmpicd, bored, ~ t e d .  obwrvrd or evaluated b y ~ u .  

3.3 If a situation arirerthaf ourer  ECSto believe rompllantrwith UlEM'Sdirectiutrwould be 
w n f n ~ f o  roundengineeting pndicu,wDvld violrteappliublcirw, ngvlationr ar wdoder, orwill 
expose ECS tolegal claims ar charges, ECS shall soaddle CLIENT. If ECS' profeIIIO~ljYdgmenl il 
rejected, ECSrhall havethe right faterminate i l ~  services In arcordenre with the provhions~l  
Section 25.0, bdow. 

3 IfCLIENTdeddertodisregard ECS' rerommendationrwlth respect f~mmpiy lngwith 
applirnbleLa~f or Regulation,. ECS ihaildel~rmlnc l lrppllubls law requires ECSw notihlthe 
appmpriate p ~ b l i c ~ f n ~ i ~ l ~ .  c u ~ ~ ~ a g r e c s t h a t  such datarm~nations a n  ~ u ' r ~ l e d g h t  to make. 

4.0 CLIENTOISCLDSURES 

4 1 Wnew l h e l c o p o f  Iem- ceq. ns LCS lo penetrate a S~te ~"ItItItIt, CL EhT rhrl. fu#n.sh 
mdlor ihaildlmlCLIEhPSron~ubalslo~ asmtl l l  to1.m B ECS nllxmatloo dcntlboa the 
hP ."d ,Dotlo" 01 ",.try I."., andoth* m.n.m.deob.wu knom. ,"lpLned.or aslumcdto be 
lornted beneath01 behind thesta'srurtare. E a  shall beentitled to rely onrvch information tor 
corn~IeLCn~ll and arrunor Without funher hvesti~alion. anrbir. or evaluatilm. . ~. 
4.2 .~arardour ~atcrialr~rhall inrlude but rot k llmltad manysubnnrethrtpowsormay 
m a  prewnt or potential hazard to human health orthsenuironmmtwhcthcrclm1~ncdina 
product, material, by-product, waste, or sample, m d  whether i l r t l s ~ i n  a solid, liquid, semisolid 
or prelrvr form.CLIEM,h.ll notify ECS ofmy known. a,lumrd,ar rurparted regulated. 
conlamlnrted, orofherrlmIlarH~urdovr Mafcrial%fhat mryexirtatthe Site pnlrrfo ECS 
moblliringto thesf.. 

;o enterrom time totime onu, thep~~b im, in  order for ECS to pertom i r~serv icei  CLIENT 
agrees to indemnifqmd haid ECS harmless from any rlr im~arlr~ngfrom allegauan~ that E U  
trespassed oria~dauthori tytoarrurtheSit~.  

7.2 C U E M w a a n U t b l i t  ~ e s a l l  nEIcllrry permits, l lentelandlor utilitydddraddfofo 
thesewirer to b prmi&d by Klexreptwhere KI. P r o p ~ l c r p l l d t l y r t ~ t u t h l  ECSwill obtain 
wch permill. Ik~nru.snd/or utilifydrmncer. 

7.3 ~ a w i l l t a k e  reawnable p-mlons tolimitdamagetothesjtettd i u l m p ~ m ~ n u d u r i n g  
thepartormaneof iu%rvke= CLIENTunderstmds that theuse of ffplfRtititi,brim.umpIiig, 
ortestinga(uipm~ntmlyovrem1nor. butmmmon, damagefotheSifc rh=mrrect i~n and 
rertonrionalruchcommondamage i r CUEMlrspnribilityunlr~rperi~ulhlinduded in ECS' 
Propolal. 

7.1 CLISNTaareerthatitwilI not brinPrnv d a i m ~ f o r l i r b l l i N o r f ~ ~ i n i u ~ ~ ~ I o ~ ~ ~ ~ a l n ~ t E C S  ~~ ~ ~- - .  . . 
ansng l r m  I I o r o r r d ~ r e ~ a ~ u a l c a  r l l h  in r~p ion toon .  %amp ngorfcstlnp a r l n u n a l  the 
SIIC. ( I .  D ~ m . ~ r )  of kazlrdom Mate# asor l.lpecte0 dvamorr  Malcrilll. ar I1 I ECS' Rno ngs. 
C O ~ C ~ L I  om, on n on,. rerommenoat#on$. olanl. andlor spec Ocaaonr rc a w o  to 0 a o r r y  of 

I 0  LNOERGROUNDUTIIITIS 

8 t ECS tna r x r a w t h e I t a n d a r d ~ 1 C a r e i n n ~  .atngrlcnt l r rn rhwmlorm2Lona1wC U 

~nfalmauon 1.2. l y ind  ~st0rn . r  w n a  able from oublir UP W loallnglarvxe5 lths 
-undrground u t i i f y ~ n f ~ r ~ ~ t i ~ ~ . j i n  bcffontoiden~hlundcrground uniit ier.neutentofsurh 
eualuafions~hall be rf ECS'ded'rultian. 

8.1 CUEMrecogopnI~cthatfhe Undegrovnd Utility Inlormation pmvid~dto or obtained WECS 
mqmntaln r r m n o r  k~mmplete.NEMund~nbndrtharECSmay beunable toidcntifythr 
loptionsof all rubrumre v t i w l i n u m d  man-madcleaturn. 

8.3 C L I E M W ~ ~ ~ .  nlearer. m d d i w h a r g s ~ ~ ~ f m m  andagainlfanydrimfordamrge,inju'Y or 
Iossall~edly ariringhomor reiatedwrubtenanemstructuns(pipr. tsnks. cables, or other 
ufl l l t ler.ef~l whlchare notolled to E W  rttentlon inmitina b N E M .  n~tconecthlrhown on . . 
In? d n a ~ l g r o ~ n d  JtI.I~mlormat on rndlornof proper r mllkca or outed bythe .llW own*%. 
,o..mmm,, or q.ae.go"rmmeosl iouton, or pr.va,. u, lily lo'.l.ng l e n l c n  a3 a rnu1, ol E O  
01 ECI' rubmnUano<r reqre%I for rtlllry mlrl lng sentn mloe n arroroanrc *.tn lorn .nO.ltv 
stmdardr. 

9.0 SAMPLES - 
9 1 Soll, mrk, water, bulldong matrnalamdlorothcrsampl~~ and rampllng by-produrtt 
obtalnedComthsYtcareand remalnthe propertqof CLIENT. Unlels DUIerarrangementrare 
requested by cu~~andmutualh lagreed upon by ECS in writing, ECS will retain s m p l c n o t  
c o ~ u m e d  in iaboretorvtertln~for un t o s i x ~ ~ ~ ~ c a l c n d a r  dwr  a f t ~ ~ t h ~ ~ ~ ~ m ~ e  ofany . - .  . .  . 
document containingdata obincdfram r u d a m p l r  Sampler consumed by Iabntoryterting 
pmadumlwil lnL-tkmred. 

9.2 U n l e ~ ~ c u E N T d l m ~  othcnrirc. sndexdudingthore i k ~ u e ~ o ~ r e d  InYction 10.0. CUEM 
authorizes ECSt~dispo~eofcUEM.Snon~haz~rdous sampler mdumpllngar t s t i n g p r x n r  by- 
produNin arcordane Wifhapplirnble laws and rrgulallons. 

10.0 ENVIRONMENTALRISKS 

10.1 when nazardaur ~aterlalsare ~LL, L L I Y ~ E ~ ,  ~ ~ ~ p ~ c t ~ d t t t t l s t ~  f f d i i i i i i i d  atthe 
site. ECS wlll endeavor lo protect is e m p l ~ e c a n d  addrea public health, ralefy. and 
anuironmenfal l r r v ~ r  in accordance with the Standard olCare. CUENTagreefO mmptn3aIe ECS 

4.1 i anvk rzardor l~a le r  a sxeodrolared or irercalonao I r.rpemo oy E C S ~ U ~ ~  15 far lrm elfo#s 
Sentces b q  n. ECS ih.1 be e n ~ l l r o  10arnend In* 'c0oe 01 Sen (eland ao -llau fees l o d k r l  10 1 wnm nazarao.s ~ a t ~ n a l % a r c  known n3.me.s or s.5pee.o to ex.% or 0 worcrcd a! the 
tne radal onalrouk orpenona wotect re.0. omen1 andlor a1.t~ Prrrrusonl rcwarcd 0, the $,re ECS I- . .kontracto~ .,crr,wthc s t m a a r d o l ~ r e  lnronta ncr zoneand ~ ~.~ ~~~ 

exi11Cnce 01 such Hazardous Materials. Iabellngsuth Hazardou$ Materials In accordmrr with sppllrnble i w r  and rcgulatianr, and will 

5,0 NIORMAnoN PRO wOEO B~oTHERSRScUENTwT ,eIIIYY anddirchhnes ECShm Icavelhcmnulnemon Slle. CLIENTbrer~onriblr f o r t h e n I r I ~ I , r e m m m I , f f n ~ ~ ~ * ~ ~ d  

m d a ~ i n t r  any daim fadamlga, in)uryarl~sallegedhlrrirlngautoforin mnnectlon With 
dirporalof surhmnUminated umples'andumpilngpmceu byprodurn In auordancewirh 

ermrr. omiuionr, orinarmn&sIndwumenUandotherlnformlUon inanyform pmvided to  ECS 
aPP'irnbieiaWmdregulation' 

by CUENTorCUENTsa8am. contractors. orramultan&.includingru~ infomation &themme 10.3 Unlcsserpli"Uyst.fed i n k S w p e  0fServ~es. ECSwiII n~ithithithithubwbmtnctfornforafonge 

i nmrpon ld  IntoECSdocumenU. forthefnnrport, disposl, or ueabmmtof HaurdousMaterialr. At C U E W s m i t t ~  reqVEIt, ECS 
may assist CUEM in identiMne amrooriate altem*s for i l m r p a h  on-slteueament, nonce, 

6 0 ~ O N C ~ L E o  R S U  UlENTaunanc~es.rtha# SPPPPI IILILILILIOLILILILILILI~ LILI LILI~OI I& n oralspolal of sum subsuuceu b.l CUEMlha be ~ol~v~er~ons~blc lUUthU1dddI I I  I N N N  01 
andlor enlratngroncea ed~0n.n om thatas hidden fmm viewandlor nath-I rcaoabh mcthodl2nd nnn110prwde%uch servacn C U E M S ~ I  s p  all m m l k ~ f o r  !he ~~IPPPP! 01 

aooamnt nor cash rcceuobls c g .  ~.b~urfancond~t onr conat onlbcnand awall, beneaeha ~.muncm lnectcd br contam nanumd ihauother*t* ~X~IIIICPN~COIC inamnilnt lor lrrrtvl 
nkr ,  or above a illlng.such~ir&mnanrerr~gulre that renaln as$umption%be made regarding 
ndsting~onditlolu,which may not bevcriliabl~withovtcxpendlngaddlfbnalsumrofmonr/or 
destrwlng ah=mlreadequateor ~ervir.able ponloor o f r  bvlldiq~rromponentthereaf. 
Acmrdlqly, ECS shall not bcrcrp~nrlble f01theVFrinCatlOn of such cond l t i o~  vnlessvetilotlDn 
om be made byrimplevirval observation. client agrees to bearmy ilndallmru, iorrer, damages 
and expenses (inrluding, but notlimlted to.the cost of ECS' Additionds~rvberl Inany wry arlrlng 
Comorln connection withthee*slenrc ordi~overyofsuch concealed orunknown<onditionl. 

105 S ~ b ~ u r t a ~ e ~ m p l i n g m a y  result in u~voldrblc~rorr.c~nnminafion of certain lvbrvrfrrc 
r e a r  as when a pmbe orexuvnion/boringdeulrrmovsthmugha contaminated zoneand l inb 
i t  tomaqulhr, undewmundnream. perviousrollstnfum,ar other hydmus badynotprevlovrhl 
mntaminaied.orronn&an untonbminatedzonc with r contaminated zone. Bernuresmpling 
Is merrenfislelcmentof theservlrerindiotd hemin, CLIEMagreu h i r i s k o n n o t b e  

dlsplrn1. 

10.4 In thoreinrtanerwhere ECS ir npr=srlyrcuinedby CLlEMtoas~irtCUENTln thedhporal 
of Hazardous Materials. nmplcs. orwastcx as panofthe Proposl. ECS shall doroonhlar 
CLlENT'Sagent [notwithstanding any other pmvlsion ofthl l  AGREEMENT10 the confnw). ECS will 
not arrvme therole 01, nor kconridered agenetator, narer,fnnrpomr, or disposer of 
nazardous Malerill% 

climlnated, Providedrvrharviru werep~rfrfrmrfd in arfrfrdddewith thestandadd dfCare. 
CLIEMwaIVes, ~ I e a ~ l a n d  diwhares ECSfrom and against mnydrim fordamaee. injury. or i o n  
a ~ ~ e p d l y  arising hom orrelated to such uarrconnmination. 

10.6 CLIEM~ndemtandsUnta PhYLI EnvimnmantalSite~lll~~m~mlEW hmhddrteddIdY 
t o p n i t  ECS Lorendera pmf~~slmalopln ionabol  t h ~ l i k = l i h o o d ~ f t h ~ s U ~  having2 R w n i z e d  

ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 
Ver. 06/04/13 



Ennronmental condr on on, m. beneath. or near tnc St. at Vnr fme fneSer*aces arerondvctcd 
~ o m a n e r  nowthoro.#ha~ha$r ICY strdymayne. fid,ntt drlmvedlrom i l ~ o n o m r c  h gn v 
1.m t t d m o  E L I  cannot .nor or sIaIe loran .OM .I~fact that in* S IL 8% .naHected o r a a r ~ r t l l ,  
affected by one or mom Rerogrzcd Environmental Canditlanr CUENTmpnentsand unrnnt t  
thaf if understand$ tho IimiOtianl associated with Phase I EU$. 

110 OWNERSHlPOFDOCUMENTS 

11 1 ECSshall be deemed theauthorand owweelor 1 l . F  repon$. 
Iktfers, photos, boring 1085. fielddata.field notes, labarateryterf dato, calculalans. derlgnr. plans, 
roerifirationr. r e o ~ ~  or nmllsr documentsand estnmater ofmvbndfurnlshed bvtt ithe . .  . . . 
-Documma of r=nac.'l and r w l l  r ~ o n a  I mmmon a*. wtutoqand other raenedr,ghtl. 
ontl.0 nlropqrghU CLENTrhall haraIm<d.non-c~du~.r~l .ccnscfouw ropelo l thc 
Oaumentsol icmu 0rond.d tolt n corm-t on w th the Plo ed for .m (h me D ~ t v m s n l l  O I  

srrvlrearr provided ~ n t l l f h e ~ ~ m p i e l l o n  of the Project. 

112 ~ ~ ~ ' s e r u i c t s v e p ~ r t o m e d r n d  ~ o r u m ~ n b  ofservice are pmuided for the CUEWS rde 
ure CUEMundenlandlandarrrruthht m y  u r e a f t h  OocumenlsdSeNirc by anyaneather 
thmtheCUENT.ih lkenwdnwdnwdmuItantsand l u l o m l d  CUEMfvnhar 
agmrr toindemnlfymd holdEa harmlersbr any mom. ~mirrionr or damage rrrvltingfrom is 
contncton,ue of EcSorrvmsntt oficrvire. 

11.3 c u ~ ~ ~ a g r e e r  to no, use ECS' Documents of~ewlceforfhe ~roject  Ifthe Pmjea 11 
subseq~~nfly modified in xope.rtrulurcor purpose without ECS' prior written consent. Any 
muse without EcSwritten ronsentlhail bestCUENPS rolerisk mdwifhovtlIablliwLoECSorf0 
ECS'wbconmctot.r(s). WEMagreerto Indemnify and hold ECS CSharmblfor m y  cnors,~mirrlonl 
~~damag~m~u~unghomitsureof EW ~a~umenu~fs~ervicerneranymod~fi~t~on~nwopc. 
3,Nct"re OIPYrPMC. 

11.4 CLiEMaprees tonof makeany modlfiouontothe Documents ofservice Withoutthe prlar 
wdttenaufhorizatlon OIECS. To hefullestactent permUted by hw.CLBNTagrc~S10 Indemnify. 
drfmd, m d  h d d  ECS harmllufmm any damage. lw, claim, Ilabilltqorcort (Indudlngrearonable 
momcyr'fteasnddrlareunts) rrirlngoutof or in mnnmlon withany unauthori,ed 
m d l n ~ t i ~ n ~ f  the D o c u m e n t s o f ~ ~ c  b y c u ~ ~ o r a n y  penon or enulythr  arquiresor 
obrrior the Oorum~nt$olSeruiccfrom or through NENT. CUENTmprrrcntr m d  wrrrants that 
thcDocum~nl ,~fLnlce ,hall be ",ed only arrvbmltfed by ECS. 

CanuIn~rir&lelyrrrponriblefor v i j e a  rlteilfetqand IhalECS personnel may rely onthe 
a k t q m r a r u r a  prwided bytheGencn1 Contreeor. 

12.2 I" theevent ~ualrumu~mwrit ingl imit~d r e s p o ~ i b ~ ~ ~ t q f o r s p ~ ~ s ~ d  afewisues.the 
rrceptameofrurh ruponribilslerdwnotmdrhall notbcdeamedanirreptan~of 
re$pon~lbilitqfor any other non-rpedned safew inues. including, but not limited mthme relating 
to excavaUng. Ucnrhlng,thoring, drillin& bednlllng, blmlng.~ra ther~onat~c~on actlvltlel. 

U.0 CONSTRUff lON~~NGANDREMEOUTlONSERVIN 

13.1 NEM~ndenfand l th~tmtNct iontu t ingand o b ~ ~ ~ t i o n , e N i c a a m  provided I n I n  
cf f in toduce,  butunnreliminate. the d*af pro~emrrrlrlngdurineor~~erromwuaion or 
remediation. CUENTagreesthatthcprOvillonof3u~hSSNlcerdoEInofCrcatcawrnntqOr 
gusnntee afanywpe. 

13.1 ~ o n l r o r i n ~ a n d / o r t o r t i n g ~ e ~ l ~ e ~ p ~ ~ ~ i d ~ l l e w t h e c L l E N ~ S  
coanaor(q from their ruponribilmer and obligationrfor lhe quallw or mmpletenersol 
connruaionar mll ar their obligationtocomply withapplluble law, code* and regulations. 

13.3 ~ ~ ~ o ~ n ~ p ~ n s i b i l n r ~ h a s ~ ~ w r f ~ r r h e  means. metho&,trrhniquer, tequendngor 
~r~iedures~fcon$tmct ion selected. lor lafew ~recautionrmd ~roaramr inddentdtowork or 

13.4 ECS lt~0nelYle~mmendsth1t CUENTmtaiiECS to ~ r ~ i d d d d d t N a l o n  monltorin8and 
t w n g  w m m  on. lullume b s s  ~ola*cr  tnc n s k o l a ~ l m n c o r  in<ampletr work bemt 
anstal ed D,CUE~.T'S connmarls) ~f cuLm e ~ c a r t o  retam ECS on a pan tame oans lor ant 
1~0e1101~0nstr.ct10n mon lonng andor test n e  CLEhT a c ' e ~ ~ s  Ule rmsUthal r oxer crcl of 
c a ~ s t ~ c t i o n  quaiiw mwoccur and that defective ~rinmmpletework mwrrru l t  and not be 
d e b a d b y  ECS'pmtimimonit~dngmdtttting. UnleuheNEMunshlmUutthhhRDrOr 
omhslon ircontalnrdin EcSrepom.CUENTwalm.mlcarcr anddischarger ECS homrod q l l n s t  
anyother claims for emrs.omisions. damages, Injuries, or loss alleged toarise fmm defeaivcor 
inmmpletework that was monitored or tested by ECS on a pan time basis. ~ x r c p t  assufonh In 
theprccedinr senrence.CLIENTagree~ to lndemnlfyand hold EL5 harmlert from all damage5 
<ostr. and attomew *er.forany claim allegiingerrorr. omislsnr damage, iduryor iolrrllcgadly 
msultlngfrom Workthat wrr moniwed ortested byECSon a pantime bash. 

11.0 CIRTIAEI\TIONIWEMmwRqmen, or g~vEmln~ivrirdininnnmN~~99Im. ECSts 
pmvldea'rertBcltIon~rmadingtheSe~l~pmuided by ECS. Any h n i n u t i o n "  reqvind of 
ECS by theCLlEMorjurlfdiction(r) h a 4 g  aufhodCq~uerrDme arallarpccb of the Pmiact shall 
consirtof ECS' inkanrcr  and pmfusional  pinr ram bared on the limited ampling. abrervatlonl. 
teStt,aln/or anabesperformed by ECSaldlrrete l a t i o m  m d i m n .  Sul'certiRcatiom'Sh1II 
mnstuute ECS. profcuiaal opinion of r rendition's exinenre, but N d m  not panntee that 
such condition exisu. nw doer Rmllmc othcrpamaof themp~mibil i t ics orobligaions~vrh 
panles havewith rrrp~ctfotheps~lbleuirten~oftvch a ronditloo. CUENTagreerllcannot 
mahrfherrr~lutlon of anydlrpvtewlLh ECSorpaymentof arm amountdueto ECScontingsnt 
upon ECS~igninamyruch 'renlfiotlon." 

15 1 nillings will be bared on the unitrates, piu~fravel rests, and other r e ~ m b u r ~ a b I e c x p ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  
arauted Inthe ProfeslonaIFf:uf:f:f:t~~~ of t h e P m p ~ a I  Any Erl~mateof ProfenlonaI Fees~t t t fd 
In fhueTermr shall nor be ronslderedar a not tc-exceedor lumo wmamountvnkrr otherwsc 
upllrithstated CLIENTundEntandr andagrees that even U ECSagILLL t O a  IumpPPmPPPPt-I* 
uce~damount. that amount shall be lhmiad lo numberof houn, vlrits,mpr,ters. barinp, or 
~amplesrtlted In LhePmponl 

1s 1 CLiENTarrcerthatall Profcsrlonal Fees and other vnlt raterrhall beadiusted annuallvl~ 
am~ntforlnnnionbcr~donthe mostrecent l l .mon~,avenga ofthccomumer~rlce l n d u  
(CPIU) for dl iuemrarr~rbiirhed by wm.bb.gouwhmfhe CPI.Uex~edranannull mtcoi1.W. 

153 Should ECS ldentlfqa Chmged Condltionlsl. EClthallnoUfytheNEMof thechanged 
Condltlonlsl. ECSsnd NENT~haii~rommUvand ln iwdfai th nerolirtcmammdmenlta the . . . . .  - 
Smm o i S e ~ I u %  Pmft~ional  ker,  mdtlmerdrdule. 

15.4 CUENTrerognizef that tlme 1s oftheeeenrewkh rnpert to pu(ment of ECS'lnvol~es, and 
thattimely payment isrmatoialcon~ldenlion forihlragreemml All paymenf~hall bein UJ. 
fundsdnm vpnU.s. b n b m d i n  ~mrdanc~withthentamdchmerwtf~nhln the 
Pnrlerrionai Fear. lnwicer are dueand pmbleuponr~celpr  

15.5 if CUENTdkputaall0rp.Rof an InMicr, CUENTrhall pmVideECSwith WriUen nouce 
stating In dctailfhefamof thrdirputewllhln nfteen (1s) calendarday~oftheinvolce. CLIENT 

per month for any paymentmeiwd by ~CSmoreUunth~rfv[M) calendar dayrfrom the dateof 
the ~ m o l n ,  excepingany ponlon of the invoiced amount In dispute. Ail payments will be applied 
b n c m ~ d  intcrerf first sndthen tothe unpaid p,lncipal amount Payment ~finvolcershall not be 
rvbjectto unilateni dscauntingorsef-off$ by CLIENT. 

15 7 CLIENT 1 O C Y  that m Db P U O n  to w l  foltne l m l l e %  8s not <onttnLLnt tmn LLENPS 
ab.1.~ IO obt2.n hnanon~ zon in~  approral o l p a e r n m c n l  or rewlatoryqenrin. pcrmnu, final 
adjuoiuuan of a I a w r ~ t ~  CUEhrS s.<unfvl mmplruon 01 the Prolm. wnlement of real mate 
(ranractlon, r e ~ e l p l ~ f  paqmenffromCrlENT'S dIenLar any othcreumntunrebted to  ECS pml3lon 
O~S~NICCI, Refa8na.e shall not be wlthheldCom anv ~avment, nw shall m v d e d u l o n  be mode 
from an" lnvo re on accornt of pen. ry. 1 q.8alf.a oamager, orolner lvms #ncvrred by C.lEm 
aapred  tnata I ram m d  I n a i f e n  nnrlvdoy a c t u  atto#rw'r I*. aria expsmrs incun-d by ECS 
m obtrinmn paymemmder th~sbsreanent. mpedWfinp or obuln ln~al~cn.  ~ ~ m v e w u n d e r  a 
bond, rollEctlnaanyd4lnquentaiounudue,orexcrurmgjudgmmtr. shall be rclmbuned by 
CLIENT. 

15.8 unless CLIENT hat pmvldednntlce to ECS in arcordancewith sedion 16.0 ofthe$eTermr. 
payment ofany inv~ice bythcCUENTshai1 meanthatthe CLlENTISatiSfiedwith ECS' Servicerand 
k n o t  aware ofanydefecb inth.se5cNiCes. 

16.0 DEFECrSIHSERVICE 

16 I CLIENT, I- permnnel,bconrulfan~,and r s~~nbac tomshr l l  pmmptly inform Euduring 
aalvc work on m y  project ofany aaual or rusper(ed defects In theS=~lces 3010 permit ECSto 
takeruh prompt, effective remedial m e s u m  that In ECS'oplnnon will reduce or elimlnrt~the 
conreouentes of anvsu thdeMiw Serviru. Thcmrnmon of delNUrmibvtlblalo ECS'hllvr~ 
to p!iofm ina~ordanrew~htheSfmdard ~ f O r e l h a l l  bepm#dedatnomrttOCUENT. 
~areuer.  ECS rhau not bcnrponriblefor the m m a i o n  of any d= f i~ l~o~anr ibv tab lc  toCUEM- 
furnkhedinformation, the ertarr,omiui.nr, defective materials, or improper InaallaUon of 
maarlalr by CLIENTS penonnel, ron$ultants or connaaorr. orwork not observed by ECS. CUENT 
rhallcamoanrate ECS for the cossof mrrertinlruch defects 

16.2 Modlficatiom torepom, ddddmmtsand p lnnrmqu ld  as8 msult tfjirisdIaiololoI reviews 
or CUENTraquertr rhallnot bcmmldemd l o  be defects. NEMIha l lmmpennP ECS forth* 
provision of S"chSuviceL 

17.0 INSURANCE- ECSrcDlrrentr thaf Rand Its rubrvntnaonand rukonrultantSmllntlin - 
woncrs Cornpewat on insmnrz andthat E(5 I tovereo b genera I ab 1.w a.fOmobdcand 
P ~ O ~ U  on. lhab lbfy ntunnce pol~r~cs n cwerapcamounll4 oeens rca%onrblr an0 aaegdate 
LCSO~II lurnoth cenmoas of l m v n ~ c  uponrqrert me WEN TO^^,^^^ ble for r q u c ~ n p  
rpwRcinrlusionr or l immof mvenp tha la rc  not present in ECS hrvnnr r  pa*ge. mamstof  
rvrhindurl~ns or coverage lnrrorer, if available, will beatthe expenreof the N E M .  

18.0 LIMITATION OF UABIIITY 

18.1 C U E M I W ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ \ ~ C I ~ W L U X I - T I D T I ~ I R ~ ~ ~ O ~ I Y U M ~ E C ( . I O T U ~ I Y ~  
m P I E M r u u ~ r n o u E C S ' ~ ~ , I I ~ ~ ~ e u ~ . a ~ ~ r O 1 r O 1  
I * D u ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ m I * I ~ e m n - . - o r m r m n , a ~ ~ w O t w * u u n , w ~ ,  

18 11 If the propwed hesrre $IO.WOor lur. ECS'fotal agswale llablllwto CLlEMrhdl nat 
nrnd  $ZO.WO, or thetohl lar  rwrlvedforthe s~~tesrend@red, whlche~eriIgrelfCr 

18 11 i f  the propmedhelanm ex<ulof $10,m0. ECS'fotai aUnmfe6abliw toCUEM~rhI I  
not ex~d$4o,Wo, orthetotal fra for the~rvicarendered, whichever bgreater. 

18 1 CL~ENTagrecrfhst ECSshaiI not be responsible fotany lnjurl. lortor damage of any nature. 
indudlng bodliy injurymd property damage, arislngdirectlyorindirelly, in whole or in part from 
~ ~ ~ r ~ m l s l ~ n s  bytheNENT, iuemplawu, r g e n ~ ,  rtaff,mnrultln~,ronfnrmrr,or 
rubmntracton t o t h e a n t  tuchiniuw, drmagc,orlw k c a v r ~ d  bya~oromi r r lonso f  CUEM. 
1s emploveu. arents,staff.  ons sultana, mntraaom, rubmntnmn or perronlentltlcs forwhom 
N ~ ~ i s i s a l l v i i a b l e .  

18.3 C~IENTagmesthat ECS'liablliw for all non-profesrlonal iiabilitqariring out ofthlr 
agreement or the IFN~CFI pravid~d I $ .  r e ~ u u ~ f  the P r w a l  be llmlted ta55m.000. 

ECS P r o p o s a l  No. 30-1356-P 
Ver. 06/04/13 



19.0 MwMuWu! 
191 S~bleuscuion 18.0. E a a m e s l o  hold huml~~~indindemnikCUEMfromrnda~amnst 
damages ansbg itom t s n w  gent iyrfomune 01 u sernns. out onov loth- men, that such 
d a m y u  m lovnd u, b. o ~ s c d  by E m  nepl'gcnt a ~ . c n a n  a omln on$, I s p ~ B u l N e c l u ~  q 
an, dam ate^ -.led bvaor th rd wm or byihc CLIENT I 

~ - 

19.2 To thefullelf ERmf permitted byhw, CLIENT-s 
from m d  against any and all liablllty,daimr, damages. demands. llnes, penaltier costsand 
expenditvre~ (induding rearonable attorneys' her and rosu of lltlgatlon debwe andlor 
r~tuement) [.oamawll mused in who l~or ln  part by the negiigentrN, enorr, or omlrrlonr of 
fheCUEMWCUENP5 e m p b p ,  agenU,staff, mntn~rr .$ubolnUorLmnwlbn~.  and 
dienu. providedrvrh Wmsger areamibuoblcta: (althc bodihlhjury. pemnr l  iniury,sicknes, 
Caurernd/ordcathofmy penon;(bl thciniurym orimrofvalvcto mngible perronalpmpew; 
or 1.1 a breach of f h ~ s ~ l e r m r .  l he  fonaingindrmnificrli~n~hall not apply totheextentsuch 
Damage 1% found to be caused bythe sole naell~ente,enors. omillions orwliUvl mlwonducl of 
ECS. 

193 ItlsrpedllrailyunddRt~t~td andarced that in no wrethall ECS be required 10 peY an 
a m ~ ~ n t ~ f O a ~ g e s d ~ ~ p m p ~ n I ~ n ~ I f o E C S ' c ~ l p e b b I ~ t y  ~ ~ C U E M D A W O ~ ~ , W Y * I ~ O V U U '  
- ~ L ~ Y ~ M U I W I - ~ ~ ~ U ~ ~ W N Y ~ ~ N Y N Y N Y , N Y N Y N Y Y U Y U - ~ ~  EL5 

m l C W O I C U E M W ( H ~ U L D H E U I B * r U D w Y I I n O m I ~  

195 I ~ * O ~ ~ ~ U ~ ~ E ~ ~ ~ * D B Y ~ I ~ D I Y D I Y D I Y D I Y D ~ P ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ N O ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ W ~ ~ ~ ~  
~ m I I X I I I m - * D .  

20.0 CONSEQUENTIAL D A M h G I  

20.1 CLlENTdallnot k l i a b l e t t  ECSandECSshhIin~f b(1I1abIct tCLiEMff f f f~ m n ~ e ~ ~ c n I I a l  
aamages mc~rred by r mar ..L to the 186 I 01 tne mnrr or me ,emploreer. consutanu, rpnu. 
mtrmon or s.mnmrton. (cgaro cu ofihc natuuc of ins la^ to, u h a t k r  such Iao.1 h ar m 
m breach o l c o n t ~ n o r  rnman~.ttn, ICI~~II, or an~othercacu of ad 00 Consequent al 

damagnindude, but arenot I l m i M  to, louof  uw sndlorr of profit 

202 ECIlhall n d k  bble m WENT, oranyeouhenp~p~d dirertly YY IndIrectIy bvCLIEM, for 
anyl8quidat~d damaprduetoanyfadt, o r f l i l v reMac t inpm orinmtal by E4luemplwees. 
agents, or rubro"vlU0,s 

21.0 SOURCES OF RECOVERY 

21.1 All daimsfordamqes~lat td to thesewtce Ip~~~ iddd  under this agreement shall bemade 
~ ~ I n ~ t t h ~ E ~ ~ n t i ~ r o n ~ c t i n g w i t h t h e C U E M f o r t h e S ~ ~ I c e L  and noother penon orentity. 
WENTa~rrrr  thalilrhail not name anvrmlhtrd~ntiNindudin~narent, mt, arrubridlary en14 .. ~ 

~ ~ d ~ d u a ~  omcor. direar. or e i p i ~ c  of EU. &rif ioi~y~nduding itr pmfeulonat 
engineersand geologW. 

2 1 1  in fhcevenrolrny dbpure orclalm befwecnCUENTand ECSarbing outof inmnnectlon 
with the Prol~n~nd/octheSmwiccr. CLlENTand ECSagreethat they will Iook~olehlmerch other 
forthesafisla~lon of 1 1 y ~ ~ ~ h d U p ~ t ~  orciatm. Moreover, 00~1th~tandlng ~nythlytgtt the 
contralymntained inany other pmuition hartin. C U E N T ~ ~ ~  ECS' agreethat their rerpctlvc 
shareholden, principals, panneq memben. agents, directon, omrcrr, employeel andlorownerr 
shall havenoliabllitywha~aeverarislngoldor inronneeionwiththe PrdleRand/~(IINlCas 
~mldedhereunder. In thementCUEM bdnlla&lm aralnttan amllltedentiW. PlrententlW, 
rubudoaryenw, or indmdual office#. Oacrctw or ~ m p l o m  In conlranntbn d l h  r Scrtlon 2 1  
C U i M ~ r c e s  to noid ECS narmlcu from andagainst =I damaps.~ollr, awrrol, or kn I nc .dm 
a m r n e 6 h e 4  irUlbumblc10 w r h  act 

P 0 UIRO PLRNCUIMS EXCLUSIONN C-EN7 I n 0  ECS agree that the Sew re5 are perlormld 
=I< y for the Oene6f 0 1 t h ~  LUENTand ale not antended b, L~~~LICLIEM 01 ECS10 OtnrPtlnv 
elk, prnon o?cnl lh rothe utenttnat an$olher peoon or cnfolv n e n d l e d  bythe SemcCI. 
~ u h  bensfitu purehl inrdsnfa#and such ommr omonor ml hlhai lnot  be deemed athlrd pa- 
benefidarylo thCIGREEMEM No th rd.P.rnlhrll O a r  th. h h l  Iorcyon Ea 'op  n on, 
rendered b mnnmoon * th ~ a ' s e m m u n f n a n m n c n r o n w n t  hom both WEM ma f a .  
whlrh h a l l  indude.afa midmum,thr third-pmfr agreement to k bound b t h r  um=Tarmr 
andconditlonr connined herein and ihid.prm/sagreement that ~ a ' s m p c  ofservlmr 
perfamed i radequ l r  

ammptto rarolve all smh ospu tn  through ex- nrgotlauon hwacn wnlor m p r s r m m v n  
of both pan in  hml lhr  wththeProj&The pamnhal larnnge a mutuallymouenlenttlme for 
the ren io rnpr~n fa t l ve  of each pawtomeet Suh meetlngLIormrwIthinfiUren (15) d m  
of eitherparlfr writtenrequest for cmutlve negotlalion or rr othrrwire mutually a g m d  
Sho~ldthir mettlngfsllto rervlf In a mutually agrceabls plan lornrdutlon ofthe Dlrputa. CLIENT 
and Eargreeth~tel tkrparmmay brlngliri&atsn 

212 CLENI $hat makeno<la m ( * h t t h o a # m h o r  mthelarmola th.cawrndaamlnr.ns 
E C S ~ ~ I ~ ~ S C U E M  ,wi fin* plodded ~ ~ ~ ~ t h a ~ r m e n ~ e n i ~ c a ~ o n - u l l d b v a ~  
n d c o e n d ~ n t e n ~ l w ~ r i ~ u n w d  in lhclvrildoctnn in *h <h the h g e n  u loatcd. realonsblv 
rpeNvingrrch and ~veryactoromiltionw~htheccrtifierrontend~ canrtrmt~r r u io~ t lono I  
thestandardof can. such cemfiwtcshall bca preond#tion to  tho inrtifuuan of snyludlml 
proceedmgand shall be pmvtded to EUt t lmPOldry r  prl~rlotheln~ufut~~nof~udludlcirl 
proceedingl 

23 3 L8tlgatlon shall belwtttuted lo r counrfcompetentju~dirtion In fhemunfy o ld lar la ln 
which ECI' om~econtn~ingmththeCLIENTir lkated The pdmer ag~ecthafthe llwrpplicrbie 
to ther~~erm$and thePrv l ru  provlded pvnvrnt to the Pmpoalrhall be thelrwr o f  the 
mmmonwealth of wqlnia, bur exrludingiu choiceof larrukr. Unless othen*ircmmaIIy a w e d  
toinwriting by bothpanies. WEMwr ivn the  ~ttorem~nanyl i t ipt ionaniontoanvothcr 
iurirdicfion. 00th pamelagne towaiveany demandfor a ma1 byiuw. 

W.0 LURINGA BREACH 

24.1 Anamthat belleves the other harmatcriailvbreachedfhefeTerm~~hsll lrlveswrittan 
c.re no! cr iden! h ng1!%8ii~gedgraunas lor term naf on Both pmlel lhal  promol y m d  In aood 
fathanemotto dentfyaruvcfor theai.'rd brearhorpnerrnt h ~ i h o w l q t h c a b u n c e o l r u c h  
bru tn  tla'ure can br  rprrrdio or the matter otnc-c m o l d  a f h # n m l m  1301 uimdar 
dayrhomthc date of thetenimt ion notice.thepartier rhallmmmittheirundvrtmdlns to 
wriUng and termination ihall not mu,. 

24.2 O t h e r p l ~ m a y w a i n a n y ~ l g h L p P D D l d o d ~ f h h h T ~ ~ ~ l n ~ r i n g a n a c f u ~ l O r ~ l l ~ g ~ d  
breed; however. suchwaiverrhall nota l f ra lvrvreaopllcrtionofsurh prmirlon orany olher 
P,OYlSlO". 

inwnfi~rnd(erm1naaonrhall bacomerffanivefouneen (141 calendar dayrafter m e P o f t h e  
terminnion notlre 

252 irrcrpect~veofwh~rh panyshall effect terminatlan, or the crvrc therefore. ECSshall 
pmmpfiy nnderto  CLIENT^ final Invoice m d  CLlENT$hall immedlltely~omp~nrate ECS lor 
S e ~ l c e ~  rendered ad costs incurred indudlng thme services rrtorirted with termlnrrlon itwlf. 
fndvdlng without llmiution, demoblllziq, modifying rdrcdules, and naahnlng pmonncl 

- .  
sriringoutoflhrservlrerpmvfded haeunder,mun beinltlared inamunofrompetcnt 
iurirdirtlon nomarrthanMo (2) yEIn from t h e m e  the p a w  knsw,or thouid have known, of 
me fa^ and mndltlonsglvlngrir~ to 1bdaim.andihallundrr norirrvmrfanrerihailruch lrwrvlt 
be initiated more thanthre~ (3)yun ham the date of~vbrfrnllalromplef$nof ECS'S~rvIce~. 

27.0 ASSIGNMENT- CUEMand E U  reIPECtIveIy bind t h e m c I v ~ ,  t h e i r s U ~ e 5 ~ r I , ~ ~ I ~ n I ,  
helrr .rndlqaInprerenew~~ rothe other parmandLheluolruorr,suiw, hein mdlegrl 
rcprrrmntms of such d h e h p r t y d t h  h h h p ~ R f o a I I ~ ~ n a n L I o I t h ~ T ~ m  NeitherCUENT 
nor Earhall assign thuaTenr .  any mghUthenunder,ar anycruseof amoo arinnlthmrefrom. 
in wholeor in parf wcthoutthrn wm~tteeconseettf the 0 t h  h y  purported assignment t t  

transfer, except as permteed above. shall be deemed null, "old md inval~d. the pvrporteda~lignee 
~hallacqulre no dgh tsa~snrv l t  ofthc purported auignment or transferandthe non-arrlgning 
p a ~ ~ h a l l  not recognizeany rvrh pvrgned a~signmcnt or transfer. 

28.0 SWEWIUI I -Any  provlllonof thnelermr l l far hsldtOviolltemylW.S(nutZ ar 
re~latlon.shall bedeemdmid.and ail mmalnlngpmuWowshrllconUnur lnhll l  f o r ~ a m d  
EM. W E M m d  EUihail~ndeavor to quldly repiaceavoided provirionwith a validrubSUtufc 
matuprcuesrha intentofthe l r r v ~ r  covered bythearlglnal provision. 

19 0 ~ V I I  ob galon$ i r  ring pr or tothetcrmlnrt~on offne agre#ment rapnseoled bv 
tncle ~eamsand P PCDYB onla orat na rerponx o I fy or I an. h oencen !he CL Ehland ECS 
~ n a l t ~ ~ r r , r r  me subnmt,a. romp .I on 01 sm<esand mearmmauon of mc agreement 

30 2 m n d 6 t l o n ~ ~ f s ~ ~ ~ ~ e t f g ~ m m r w ~ t h  the PPPPPPPI, i n c ~ ~ d t n g a i ~ ~ x h ~ b ~ u ,  
appcnd~cs, and otherdommcnu appended toit. con~twte thcentirrapreement between 
 CLIENT^^ ECS c ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ a d n o w l e d p e r  that all mar undentandlnsand nesotltlltlonr m 
,"pansdad by thb lwemenf  

30 1 CLlEMmd ECSagreethatsubwqueot m o d ~ F l t ~ ~ n s  to thalgrlcmcnf represented by 
thu.shallno~ be b~ndmqunl.rr madein wnthgand r a m d  byaumorked npruenn t i ruo f  both 
pa*- 

304 All preprinted terms andmndltionsonCLIEMlpurrhase order, WorkAuthodzallon, or 
other senice a t k ~ ~ ~ l e d e e m ~ ~ l f o r m s ,  are inappllwbie and supenedad by LhewTenr lnd 
Cond#tionrofSewlr~ 

10 5 WENPIeXerUtion of a Work A ~ t h h h I ~ a t l ~ h f h ~ ~ ~ b m l $ ~ l o n  o f f  fttnwnnkauthorlzatlon 
104 orwritten1 or ikruance o f r  ~ u r r h ~ w o r d ~ r c o n r t ~ u t n c u ~ ~ ~ s a ~ ~ t ~ n r c o f  this P~WIII 
i n d  itr qrerm;lfo be fully bo;ndthefoegoingTem. IICUEM hilt i~pmuidLEClui lh a 
signedcopyof l h n c T e m  orthe artached WorkauthlrkaUon.CUENTalner that by a l h o r i z h  
and auept in~thes.rv imolEa,  i tw i i l k fu lh l  bovndbylhsrTermsuiftheyhrd haensigned 
WCLIENT 

ECS Proposal No. 30-1356-P 
Ver. 06/04/13 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-147 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that, at the meeting of 
the City Council to be held on Tuesday, November 12, at 7:00 p.m., the Council Chamber of Mountain 
Brook City Hall, the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the adoption of an ordinance 
repealing sections 109-3 1, 1 09-56, 1 09-1 95 and 109-227 of the City Code and adopting by reference 20 1 8 
versions of specified building and technical codes and the 201 7 version of the electrical code. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the 
City Clerk be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to cause to provide at least 15 days' notice of the 
time,, place and purpose of the hearing by posting in four (4) conspicuous places within the City of 
Mountain Brook, as follows: City Hall, 56 Church Street, Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road, Gilchrist 
Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road, Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road, the following notice concerning 
the proposed actions in words and figures substantially as follows: 

"PUBLIC HEARING 

Notice is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook to be held on Tuesday, November 12, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chamber of the Mountain Brook 
City Hall, the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding a proposal that the City Council adopt an 
ordinance in words and figures substantially as follows: 

'ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTIONS 109-31,10966,109-195, AND 
109-227 OF THE CITY CODE AND ADOPTING BY REFERENCE 2018 VERSIONS 

OF SPECIFIED BUILDING AND TECHNICAL CODES AND THE 2017 VERSION OF 
THE ELECTRICAL CODE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama (the "City 
Council") heretofore has adopted various technical codes promulgated by the International Code 
Council (the "ICC") and the National Fire Protection Association relating to buildings, 
residences and other structures in the City of Mountain Brook (the "City"), and operations in the 
City concerning he1 gas, mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems (collectively, the 
"Technical Codes"); 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires that, except to the extent specified herein, the City 
adopt, the 201 8 versions of the Building and Technical Codes except for the electrical code 
which is the 20 17 version (the "Updated Building and Technical Codes") that are specified 
herein for use and application for buildings and structures within its corporate limits; 

WHEREAS, the adoption of the Updated Building and Technical Codes by reference is 
authorized by § 1 1-45-8 Code of Alabama (1 975); and 

WHEREAS, the adoption of the Updated Building and Technical Codes will facilitate 
the performance of inspection activities by the City, and promote the public safety, health and 
general welfare of its citizens and owners, occupants and users of buildings and structures in the 
City. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City as follows: 

Section 1. Section 109-3 1 of the City Code is hereby repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 109-31. - Building codes-Adoption by reference. 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Building Code - 201 8 Edition ("ICC 
Building Code") and International Residential Code - 2018 Edition (the "IRC") and 
International Swimmine. Pool and Spa Code - 201 8 Edition (the "ISPSC"), as published by 
the ICC and available for purchase at 900 Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama, are 
hereby adopted as the building code of the city by reference as though they were set forth 
filly herein. 

(b) The building codes adopted by Section 109-3 1(a) are amended as follows: 

(i) The following codes that are referenced in this Section [A] 10 1.4 of the ICC 
Building Code are not adopted: (a) the International Property Maintenance Code 
referenced in Section 10 1.4.4; and (b) the International Existing Building Code 
referenced in Section 10 1.4.7. 

(ii) Section [A] 109.2 of ICC Building Code & Section R108.2 of IRC are hereby 
repealed and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, and 
plumbing systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee or fees as set forth in City 
Code Section 14- 1 shall be paid at the time of filing application, in accordance with 
such fee schedule as shall be set from time to time by the city council. A list of such 
fees shall be kept on file in the city clerk's office. 

(iii) Sections [A] 1 1 1.1 of ICC Building Code & R1lO.l of IRC are hereby repealed 
and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

Use and occupancy. No residential building or structure shall be used or occupied, 
and no change in the existing occupancy classification of a residential building or 
structure or portion thereof shall be made until the building official has issued a 
certificate of occupancy which has been signed by the building official and the City 
Manager. No commercial building or structure shall be used or occupied, and no 
change in the existing occupancy classification of a commercial building or 
structure or portion thereof shall be made until the building official has issued a 
certificate of occupancy which has been signed by the building official, the fire 
official, and the City Manager. A certificate of occupancy shall not be issued until 
after the City Manager shall have determined that the building conforms to all 
provisions and regulations of the city with respect thereto, including its use under 
the zoning ordinances of the city. A certificate of occupancy (whether a temporary 
certificate of the regular certificate) issued without the signature or the building 
official, fire official (in the case of commercial buildings), and the City Manager 
shall not be deemed to be a certificate of occupancy issued under this code or under 
the city's zoning ordinance. 



(iv) Sections [A] 1 13 of ICC Building Code & R112 of the IRC are hereby repealed 
and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

Appeals regarding the application of the adopted building codes may be presented 
to the City Manager for consideration. The City Manager may elect to render a 
decision on such appeal or remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In 
cases where the appeal is heard by the City Manager and a decision is rendered, the 
appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may then appeal to the board of zoning 
adjustment. 

The board of zoning adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as said 
board is prescribed by Section 11-52-80 Code of Alabama (1975), as amended, 
shall constitute a board of adjustments and appeals under these codes. 

(v) Sections [A] 1 14.4 of ICC Building Code & R113.4 of IRC are hereby repealed 
and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 

R113.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a provision of these codes or 
fails to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters 
or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction 
documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued 
under the provisions of these codes, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by 
law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making application for a 
required permit, all applicable permit fees shall be doubled. Once notified in writing 
by the building official of the City that a report or building permit application must 
be submitted, such person must submit such report within ten (1 0) days. Persons 
who fail to make such report within the time period required shall be subject to 
additional penalties as provided under Sec. 1-6.1 of the City Code and by $13A-10- 
4 of the Code of Alabama. 

(vi) Chapter 11 of IRC is adopted except as follows: (a) notwithstanding any provisions 
contained in Chapter 11 or elsewhere in the IRC, the Energy Efficiency 
requirements in the IRC shall not be applicable to the repair, renovation, alteration 
or reconstruction of existing buildings and structures; and (b) the minimum 
standards for insulation to be used in connection with the repair, renovation, 
alteration or reconstruction of existing buildings and structures shall not be less than 
R-30 for ceiling spaces, R-13 for walls and R-19 for floors. 

(vii) Section P2904 of the IRC- Dwelling Unit Fire Sprinkler Systems is adopted, but 
amended by adding the following provision as P2904.8.9: 

P2904.8.9 Residential Sprinkler Exemption. Notwithstanding any provision in 
this Section P2904 or elsewhere in the IRC, any homeowner, upon application to 
the City's building official, may request an exemption to the sprinkler system 



requirements of P2904.1 for a dwelling and such exemption shall be granted upon 
satisfaction of each of the following: 

a. The applicant must either confer with the City Fire Marshal or his or her 
designee about the benefits of installing a residential fire sprinkler system or 
review presentation materials developed by the Fire Marshal concerning 
sprinkler systems; 

b. The applicant must certify that he or she has met the requirements in 
subsection (a) above, and fully understands and acknowledges the risks of 
opting not to install a residential fire sprinkler system; 

Exceptions: 

1. No exemption shall be granted for any dwelling constructed less than 5 feet from 
the property line; and 

ii. No exemption shall be granted for 2-family or more dwelling units. 
(viii) Section 506.2.1 of the 201 8 IRC is adopted but is amended by adding the following 

language to such section: 

Fill depths between 24-60" shall be permitted where fill consists of #57 compacted 
gravel stone backfill and where #4 rebar on 16" center tied in both directions or 
other approved reinforcement material, as specified by an engineer's report, is 
utilized." 

Section 2. Section 109-56 of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"See. 109-56. - Electrical code-Adopted by reference. 

The National Electrical Code. 201 7 Edition, published by the National Fire Protection 
Association and available for purchase fiom the National Fire Protection Association, 1 
Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA, is hereby adopted by reference as though it were set forth fully 
herein as the electrical code of the city." 

Section 3. Section 109-1 95 of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 109-195. - Gas and mechanical codes-Adoption by reference. 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Fuel Gas Code - 201 8 Edition (the "Gas 
Code") and International Mechanical Code - 2018 Edition (the "Mechanical Code"), both 
published by International Code Council ("ICC") and available for purchase at 900 
Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama, are hereby adopted as the gas and mechanical 
code of the city by reference as though they were set forth fully herein. 

(b) The Gas Code and the Mechanical Code, adopted by Section 109-1 95 are amended as 
follows: 



(i) Sections [A] 106.6.2 of Gas Code & [A] 106.5.2 of Mechanical Code are hereby 
repealed and are replaced in their entirety with the following: 
Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, and 
plumbing systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee or fees as set forth in City 
Code Section 14-1 shall be paid at the time of filing application, in accordance with 
such fee schedule as shall be set from time to time by the city council. A list of such 
fees shall be kept on file in the city clerk's office. 

(ii) Sections [A] 108.4 of Gas Code & Mechanical Codes are hereby repealed and are 
replaced in their entirety with the following: 

[A] 108.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a provision of these codes or 
fails to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters 
or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents 
or directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the 
provisions of this code, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making application for a 
required permit, all applicable permit fees shall be doubled. Once notified in writing 
by the building official of the City that a report or building permit application must be 
submitted, such person must submit such report within ten (1 0) days. Persons who 
fail to make such report within the time period required shall be subject to additional 
penalties as provided under Sec. 1-6.1 of the city code and by 9 13A-10-4 of the Code 
of Alabama. 

(iii) Sections 109 of Gas Code & Mechanical Code are hereby repealed and are 
replaced in their entirety with the following: 

Appeals regarding the application of the adopted building codes may be presented to 
the City Manager for consideration. The City Manager may elect to render a decision 
on such appeal or remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In cases 
where the appeal is heard by the City Manager and a decision is rendered, the 
appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may then appeal to the board of zoning 
adjustment. 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as said 
board is prescribed by Section 1 1-52-80 Code of Alabama (1975), as amended, shall 
constitute a board of adjustments and appeals under these codes." 

Section 4. Section 109-227 of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 109-227. Plumbing Code-Adoption by reference. 

(a) Except as provided herein, the International Plumbing Code - 201 8 Edition published by 
International Code Council ("ICC") (the "Plumbing Code") and available for purchase at 
900 Montclair Road, Birmingham, Alabama, is hereby adopted as the Plumbing Code of 
the city by reference as though it were fully set forth herein. 



(b) The Plumbing Code adopted by Section 10-227(a) is amended as follows: 

(0 Section [A] 106.6.2 of Plumbing Code - Fee Schedule. This Section is not 
adopted in the form proposed by the ICC, and is replaced in its entirety with the 
following: 

Schedule of Permit Fees. On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, and 
plumbing systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee or fees as set forth in City 
Code Section 14-1 shall be paid at the time of filing application, in accordance with 
such fee schedule as shall be set from time to time by the city council. A list of such 
fees shall be kept on file in the city clerk's office. 

(ii) Section [A] 108.4 of Plumbing Code is hereby repealed and is replaced in its 
entirety with the following: 

[A] 108.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates a provision of this code or 
fails to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters 
or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents 
or directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the 
provisions of this code, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by law. 

In instances where a person commences work prior to making application for a 
required permit, all applicable permit fees shall be doubled. Once notified in writing 
by the building official of the City that a report or building permit application must be 
submitted, such person must submit such report within ten (1 0) days. Persons who 
fail to make such report within the time period required shall be subject to additional 
penalties as provided under Sec. 1-6.1 of the City Code and by 5 13A-10-4 of the 
Code of Alabama, 

(iii) Section 109 of Plumbing Code is hereby repealed and is replaced in its entirety 
with the following: 

Appeals regarding the application of the adopted building code may be presented to 
the city manager for consideration. The City Manager may elect to render a decision 
on such appeal or remand the appeal to the board of zoning adjustment. In cases 
where the appeal is heard by the City Manager and a decision is rendered, the 
appellant, if not satisfied with the decision, may then appeal to the board of zoning 
adjustment. 

The board of zoning adjustment of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as said 
board is prescribed by Section 11-52-80 Code of Alabama (1975), as amended, shall 
constitute a board of adjustments and appeals under this code. 

(iv) Section 410.3 of the Plumbing Code is amended to add the following as Subpart 
"3" under Exceptions: 

3. An approved water cooler with an accessible approved spout height and a bottled 
water dispenser and permanent affixed cup or water bottle holder shall be 
permitted to be substituted for a standard high low water cooler fixture complying 



with 410 in instances where the space is shown to be limited. Such substitution 
shall only be permitted where the update is part of renovation of an existing group 
B or M business space. 

Section 5. This ordinance is cumulative in nature and is in addition to any power and 
authority which the City of Mountain Brook may have under any other ordinance or law. 

Section 6. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or 
impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in fill force and effect, 
notwithstanding such holding. 

Section 7. Any provisions herein that the City has adopted that deviate from the 
Technical Codes that are adopted by reference shall prevail over any conflicting provision of 
those Technical Codes. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, which are inconsistent with the 
provisions of this ordinance, are hereby expressly repealed. 

In addition, when a provision in the adopted Technical Codes or this Ordinance refers to 
the duties of certain named officials, the official of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama whose 
duties most closely correspond to those of such named official shall be deemed the official 
responsible for the enforcement of said provision. 

Section 8. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be January 1,2020.' 

At the aforesaid time and place, all interested parties will be heard in relation to the 
changes proposed by said ordinance." 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that not less than three (3) copies of the codes proposed for 
adoption by reference be filed for not less than fifteen (1 5) days prior to the date of such hearing for use 
and examination by the public in the office of the City Clerk. 

ADOPTED: This 14th day of October, 20 19. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 14th day of October, 2019. 

Mayor 


	2019-Oct-14 Agenda
	1 Alice Williams
	2 Sep 23 minutes
	3 Oct 1 minutes
	4 PC appointment
	5 Surplus equipment
	6 Ratify ROW acquisition
	7a All In Mountain Brook
	7b Bham Zoo
	7c Bham Botanical Gardens
	7d Mental Health Authority
	7e Prescott House
	8 Smyer Road
	9 Set public hearing



